
Please Note:  ORS197.763(6):  “Unless there is a continuance, if a participant so requests before the conclusion of the initial evidentiary hearing, the record shall remain 
open for at least seven days after the hearing.”  (applicable only to quasi-judicial public hearings)  

 

 

 

 

 
 

AGENDA & NOTICE OF PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 
 The Planning Commission of the City of Newport will hold a meeting at 7:00 p.m. Monday, November 9, 2015, at the Newport City Hall, 

Council Chambers, 169 SW Coast Hwy., Newport, OR 97365.  A copy of the meeting agenda follows. 

 The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities.  A request for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other 

accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting to Peggy Hawker, City Recorder, 541-574-

0613. 

 The City of Newport Planning Commission reserves the right to add or delete items as needed, change the order of the agenda, and discuss 

any other business deemed necessary at the time of the meeting. 

 
NEWPORT PLANNING COMMISSION 

Monday, November 9, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

AGENDA 

A. Roll Call.  

 

B. Approval of Minutes. 

 

1.  Approval of the Planning Commission regular session meeting minutes of October 12, 2015, and the work session meeting 

minutes of October 26, 2015.        

 

C. Citizens/Public Comment. 

 

1.  A Public Comment Roster is available immediately inside the Council Chambers.  Anyone who would like to address the 

Planning Commission on any matter not on the agenda will be given the opportunity after signing the Roster.  Each speaker 

should limit comments to three minutes.  The normal disposition of these items will be at the next scheduled Planning 

Commission meeting.  

 

D. Consent Calendar.   

  

E. Action Items. 

   

F. Public Hearings. 

 

 1.  File No. 3-PAR-15-A.  A de novo hearing on an appeal of the Community Development Director’s decision of denial by 

Final Order adopted 9/24/15 for the partition of Tax Lot 607 of Assessor’s Map 10-11-20-BC filed by the applicant and property 

owner, Jonathan Holbrook. 

 

G. New Business. 

   

H. Unfinished Business. 

  

I.  Director Comments. 

   

J.  Adjournment. 

 



Page 1    Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 10/12/15 
 

Draft MINUTES 

City of Newport Planning Commission 

Regular Session 

Newport City Hall Council Chambers 

Monday, October 12, 2015 

 
Commissioners Present:  Jim Patrick, Rod Croteau, Lee Hardy, Bob Berman, Mike Franklin, Gary East, and Bill 

Branigan. 

 

City Staff Present:  Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos and Executive Assistant Wanda Haney. 

 

A. Roll Call.  Chair Patrick called the meeting to order in the City Hall Council Chambers at 7:00 p.m.  On roll 

call, Hardy, Berman, Croteau, Patrick, Franklin, East, and Branigan were present. 

 

B. Approval of Minutes.   
 

1. Approval of the Planning Commission regular session meeting minutes of September 14, 2015. 

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Croteau, seconded by Commissioner Franklin, to approve the Planning 

Commission meeting minutes as presented.  The motion carried unanimously in a voice vote. 

 

C. Citizen/Public Comment.  No public comments. 

 

D. Consent Calendar.  Nothing on the Consent Calendar. 

 

E. Action Items.  No items requiring action to be taken. 

 

F. Public Hearings.  Patrick opened the public hearing portion of the meeting at 7:02 p.m. by reading the 

statement of rights and relevance.  He asked the Commissioners for declarations of conflicts of interest, ex parte 

contacts, bias, or site visits; and they all declared site visits.  Patrick called for objections to any member of the 

Planning Commission or the Commission as a whole hearing this matter; and none were heard. 

 

1. File No. 1-SV-15.  A proposed street vacation initiated by the City Council, at the request of Samaritan 

Pacific Health Services, Inc. on behalf of Pacific Communities Health District, for portions of SW 10 th Street from 

SW Bay Street north to SW Case Street; SW Case Street from SW 10th Street east to SW 11th Street; and an alley 

between and parallel to SW 10th and 11th Streets from SW Bay Street north to SW Case Street.  The Planning 

Commission will forward a recommendation on this matter to the City Council.  

 

Patrick opened the hearing for File No. 1-SV-15 at 7:03 p.m. by reading the summary of the file from the agenda.  He 

called for the staff report.  Tokos noted that in their packets the Commissioners had a staff report along with 

attachments.  As noted, this is a request to vacate the streets listed.  These streets are developed and have public 

utilities in them.  These streets serve more or less as internal circulation for the hospital.  For the hospital to expand 

as envisioned, these streets need to be vacated so that the hospital has the ability to expand over them.  Tokos noted 

that the criteria for street vacation are set in State Statute chapter 271.  These were listed in the staff report, and Tokos 

read them.  First is if the owners of a majority of the affected area have objected in writing to the vacation.  Tokos 

noted that after the City Council initiated the vacation, our department provided notice consistent with State 

requirements.  With street vacations, the notification area is 400 feet from the terminal end of the right-of-way and 

200 feet to either side of the area to be vacated.  Within that area, we would have to have a majority object.  We 

received no comments, so there’s no such objection.  He said it’s relevant to note that only the Health District owns 

the abutting properties because the second criterion is will the vacation of the right-of-way adversely affect the market 

value of the abutting properties, and if so, have those owners consented in writing.  This request was put forth by the 

District, and the vacation will not adversely impact them.  In fact, it will likely increase their property value slightly 

because they will be picking up more property, which gives them more flexibility to expand.  The third criterion is if 

notice has been duly given as prescribed by State Statute.  That has been done.  As required, there were the three legal 

publications in the newspaper prior to this meeting, and that will be repeated before the City Council hearing.  The 



Page 2    Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 10/12/15 
 

property will be posted prior to the City Council hearing.  Our department will make sure those steps are followed.  

Tokos noted that the fourth criterion, and probably of most concern to the Planning Commission, is if the public 

interest will be prejudiced by the vacation of the street.  He said, in this case, Samaritan outlined in their letter of 

August 17th, Attachment “A”, why the public interest isn’t prejudiced; and he believes that the Commission can rely 

upon that.  Tokos said there is also a standard about the maintenance of public access to the estuary and the ocean.  

You can access those features.  In this case this is a secondary access.  There are more direct accesses to the bay by 

way of Harbor or Bay Street; so the vacation of this right-of-way will not compromise access to the bay or ocean.  

Because this is within 5000 feet of the harbor, the Port Commission will have to provide consent.  This is scheduled 

for their consent at their October 27th meeting.  Tokos noted that Attachment “B” shows the exact area to be vacated.  

If the rights-of-way were to be vacated, a blanket utility easement would be reserved over the affected area until the 

hospital relocates them.  At that time, the City could release the easements.   

 

Berman asked if all or a portion of that property is on the tax rolls now or if it’s considered public because the District 

owns it.  Tokos expects that they are not taxable.  He doesn’t know the disposition of the residentially-zoned property 

in that block; but he expects they’re not being taxed.  He said maybe the hospital representatives can speak to that. 

 

Proponents:  Ralph Breitenstein MD, Chairman of the District’s Board of Directors, and Jon Conner, Health Services 

Director of Engineering, came forward to testify as proponents.  Breitenstein said that this is the first step for the new 

hospital.  They own all of the lots in the blocks around the hospital.  They are planning to build and extend the new 

facility adjacent to the existing 1988 two-story structure.  It will essentially run across Case Street and down 10th 

Street.  The central utility plant will be moved, and the helipad will be moved.  There will be parking basically on all 

sides of the facility.  There will be a new ER entrance on the south side probably.  He said this is a big deal.  They 

need this step to make it happen.  Conner said they don’t have the exact plans that they’ll be building off of yet.  They 

are still working on selecting a design team.  He said the thought in the concept that was put forth for the bond measure 

election was that the very first phase would be building a central utility plant and relocating the utilities. 

 

Berman said that the only thing that struck him on his site visit was that there were lots of cars parked in there.  He 

wondered if this vacation is done, and the hospital begins doing ground prep, what provisions the hospital has made 

during construction to adequately provide parking for visitors and staff and whoever’s parking there now.  Conner 

said that he didn’t have hard data to show, but from being on site every day, he would say that 99% of those vehicles 

belong to employees.  One of the items they would have to provide is temporary parking for the duration.  He said 

there is a parking lot there.  That is what they did when they built the CHE building; provide temporary parking there.  

With not having any definitive plans yet, that’s something they will have to design and come up with.  His assumption 

would be that they would utilize some of the areas along 9th Street.  There’s a modular trailer that was used for a 

computer training room, and that function is now being served by the CHE building.  So, they are working on getting 

that out of there.  He agreed it is a concern and something that has to be addressed, but there’s nothing on paper since 

they don’t have drawings yet.  Breitenstein noted that the parking during the day at the new CHE building tends to be 

underutilized; and that’s where probably 30 or 40 spaces are that could get utilized during the day, which is when 

most people work.  Berman said his concern is that the cars not move south or west and into the residential areas to 

park.  Conner said they would do everything possible to keep those on site.  A potential spot would be directly north 

of that temporary parking lot.  There is a pretty wide open green space that could be temporarily graded, filled, and 

compacted.  Branigan asked when the hospital expects to move dirt.  Conner said until they get the design team 

selection done, he’s hesitant to say.  There’s nothing set in stone.  Once the design team is selected there’s probably 

an eight to ten month design period.  He said it would be nice if they were moving dirt by next summer.  Branigan 

asked if between now and then they shouldn’t be able to resolve any of the parking issues that have been brought up.  

Conner said that would be one of the first things that would need to be addressed.  Patrick asked where the helipad is 

going.  Conner said, again, without having any hard plans in place he couldn’t say definitely; but the concept drawings 

put forward for the bond measure show it being moved he believes basically due east.  He said as you look at the plot 

there, it would be kind of in the southeast portion of the campus almost towards the intersection of 11th and Bay.  

Franklin asked if the new building will be two-story as well; in which case the overall footprint would be less.  Conner 

and Breitenstein said they are looking at three stories.  Franklin said then you’re going to have a lot more room for 

parking.  Breitenstein said it looks like from the plans they’ve seen that there’s a lot of parking.  Conner said if they 

move forward with what the concept shows, the entire 1952 and 1976 structures would come down; and that would 

all be parking.  So there would be parking on both sides of that.  

 

There were no other proponents present to testify.                                       



Page 3    Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 10/12/15 
 

Opponents or Interested Parties:  There were no opponents or interested parties present to testify. 

 

Patrick closed the hearing at 7:15 for Commission deliberation.  Hardy said that she had no problem with the projected 

street vacation.  Berman agreed.  Croteau said it’s a must-do action.  Franklin said it’s very straightforward and agreed.  

East agreed.  Branigan agreed with the exception that the hospital comply with any future easement rules for utilities 

as the project is developed.  Patrick agreed as well.  He said that was his only thing because he didn’t see that in here 

about moving utilities; but if the City holds an easement until they’re moved, that works.     

 

MOTION was made by Commissioner Croteau, seconded by Commissioner Berman, to forward a positive 

recommendation on this matter to the City Council with the conditions indicated.  The motion carried unanimously in 

a voice vote.    

 

G. New Business.  No new business to discuss. 

 

H. Unfinished Business. 

 

1. Tokos noted that the two Urban Renewal Districts were adopted by the City Council on October 5th.  That 

step is done for the time being.  He is working with the County Assessor’s office to fine-tune the legal boundaries. 

That should be wrapped up within the next few days, and we’ll get both of those ordinances recorded.  He said it will 

be quiet for a little bit.  The first increment doesn’t come off until next fiscal year.  He thinks we’ll kick up Agate 

Beach first, probably in the 2017 timeframe.  Croteau asked if McLean Point shouldn’t go fairly quickly too.  Tokos 

said that the Port is continuing to work with Teevin Bros. anticipating they will get a lease option by January 2017 

with construction underway somewhere in 2017 for the log yard.  The RONDYS group wants to get their 48-thousand-

square-foot warehouse development going about the same time.  Berman asked what the general schedule was for 

developing the projects themselves.  Tokos said the first two things to do is an Agate Beach infrastructure refinement 

plan, which will probably be a nine to twelve month process in 2017.  We’ll also have the commercial core area 

refinement plan that we’ll be doing in partnership with ODOT.  That might get started a little bit earlier; but it might 

not.  If not, then we’re looking at 2017-2020, a three-year project, to identify how we’re going to address our 

transportation network for US 101 and US 20 in the long-term over thirty years or so.  Berman asked if that wouldn’t 

be primarily consultant work.  Tokos said there will be a lot of consultant work, a lot of outreach work, community 

engagement, and quite a bit of graphic work in Agate Beach.  We’ll have some charrettes to mock up.  Once we map 

out the existing conditions to figure out what folks are comfortable with, we’ll work with the internal constituents like 

the Fire Department and Public Works.  There are limits about how narrow we can go with streets and things of that 

nature.  So there will be some back and forth to identify priorities up there.  The work with ODOT will be more 

involved; there’s more modeling of the network involved with how the highway functions now and how it will in 

twenty to thirty years, what different alternatives might look like, and how they would affect traffic patterns and 

properties.  He expects that process to be more involved.  It’s something we’ll have to work through and work with 

the State on and map that out up front so we have a clear idea of what we are trying to accomplish, what the different 

community engagement points are, and at what point decisions will be made.   

 

Back down to Bay Boulevard, Franklin said it’s his understanding that we’re going to be increasing the water line 

going up that road to service a better pump station or sewer line.  Tokos said as part of McLean Point, it will at some 

point include a new pump station on the peninsula and an up-sized main line.  It will tie into the existing gravity line, 

which is basically at Vista.  Franklin wondered if that will pose a problem when there’s construction going on.  Are 

they going to tear the road up before they start working on the log yard and before they start working on the new 

warehouses?  Tokos said it’s unlikely.  They don’t need sewer improvements for the log yard; a holding tank is 

sufficient.  The driver for the sewer improvements is the balance of what RHONDYS wants to do.  So their first phase 

of 48 thousand square feet of flex warehouse space, which would be for support of the fishing fleet and maybe some 

marine research space, isn’t going to have a heavy sewer demand with it.  Down the road, they may want to do fish 

processing or canneries or something like that; which could have a more significant impact and would need that sewer 

service.  They would like to have that because it increases the marketability of the property, and they have a broader 

range of users that they can bring in if they have that type of infrastructure in place.    

 

2. Croteau said that he understood that the PUD acquired the property up on Avery Street that used to be the 

plumbing concern, and he wondered if that was anything that would affect the Planning Commission in terms of 

permitting or traffic issues.  Tokos said that there’s likely to be a traffic impact analysis on it.  He noted that the PUD 



Page 4    Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 10/12/15 
 

has closed on that property.  They are in discussion with the City about various permitting issues.  The first thing the 

Commission will see from them will probably be an annexation because in addition to the industrial properties in the 

city there was a small residential property on 101 that they picked up as well that’s outside the city limits.  So they’ll 

need to get that annexed into the city.  All city infrastructure wraps around that little residential piece since it was 

outside the city; and they will want to work with us to relocate our utilities.  They will be doing a replat to consolidate 

the properties.  Some of that the Commission won’t see, but will definitely see that annexation  Eventually we’ll look 

at the traffic impact analysis and will be picking up a conversation with ODOT and maybe some other property owners 

up there about signalization at 73rd and whether or not that’s viable and would meet State warrants to trigger a signal.  

We do have some funding to contribute towards it; but property owners would have to contribute as well.  The PUD 

is moving their maintenance yard from South Beach to this northern location.  They’re looking at about a fourteen to 

sixteen month window if their governing body authorizes construction.  They are still in discussion about exactly 

when they want to do that and don’t have a specific date yet.  East asked what is going to happen to their property in 

South Beach.  Tokos said they will have to make a decision about what they want to do with their property down there.  

They will have to do a property line adjustment because they will retain their substation.  He doesn’t know if they’ve 

made any decision other than they recognize that it’s something they will have to make a decision about whether or 

not to keep the property or sell it.  Franklin thought it might be a good location for apartments.  Tokos said that 

property is in a tsunami inundation area, and it’s zoned light industrial right now.  The property immediately upslope 

of it is vacant and is out of the tsunami inundation area.  It has good access off 40 th and could definitely be done as 

apartments.  He thinks it’s owned by one of the members of the Stocker family.  Patrick said we’re not taking any of 

our industrial and turning it into residential because we don’t have enough anyway.  Tokos said we might want to pick 

up a conversation about tweaking our “light industrial”.  He’ll bring that up at a later date.  Patrick said that would be 

a great commercial spot.     

 

3. East asked if construction of the Oceanview Assisted Living addition where they did the annexation will 

happen now that the water tank is there.  Tokos said that Andy Park, who’s the driver behind that, is out soliciting 

proposals from architects for them at this point.  In a few months we might see something.  East asked if the water 

tank cleared the way for some other larger developments up there.  Tokos said we have the water pressure to support 

that.  We still have some sewer issues though; but we’re working to address those in terms of capacity problems with 

the daisy chain of different pump stations we have as you move south.       

 

4. Berman asked if those properties where they are putting the hospital are zoned R-4 if that will require any 

action on the part of the Planning Commission.  Tokos said no; hospitals are permitted in that zone.   

 

5. Tokos said on October 26th, the Commission will have a work session on recreational marijuana.  He noted 

that the OLCC has released draft rules that are up on their website.  Tokos will provide an outline about some of the 

different options the Commission has under the legislation that has been passed as far as what land use regulations 

you can and can’t propose.  How we approached it with medical marijuana, and whether similar approaches should 

be taken with recreational marijuana in terms of how we set up our permitting, was with a business license endorsement 

and was largely targeted at providing a little bit more robust background checks and things of that nature that the 

Police Department was looking for.  He said it might make sense to just take a similar approach with recreational 

marijuana.  He didn’t see anything in the OLCC rules that gets at like a thousand feet from other dispensaries like you 

have for medical marijuana that the Health Authority actually regulates.  If OLCC is not going to be putting in place 

any kind of spacing requirements, that’s something the Commission probably at least wants to talk about since those 

kinds of requirements are in place for the medical marijuana dispensaries.  Tokos will try to outline it and provide 

different options.  This is just an initial work session; so you also have an opportunity to talk about how you want to 

take that forward and pull in the public for that conversation.  It’s just an initial conversation, and he expects there 

will be more than one work session and public hearings.  Croteau wondered if there was enough time for Tokos to get 

input on what other jurisdictions are doing.  Tokos suspects that most jurisdictions were waiting for the OLCC rules, 

but he will take a look and see what resources are available.  He said that the Commission is not on a specific time 

crunch, but he will map out the key dates so the Commission has a sense of when decisions would need to be made. 

 

6. Tokos said we have advertised positions for the Advisory Committee, and those are due next week.  We have 

one application at this point.  We have two vacancies.  He asked the Commissioners to encourage anyone they may 

have in mind to apply.  There’s a link to the application on the city website.  The applications will be reviewed at the 

next work session.     

 



Page 5    Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 10/12/15 
 

7. There’s just a work session on October 26th.  There will be a regular session on November 9th.  There is an 

appeal of a partition plat denial that the Commission will consider.    

I. Director Comments.  No additional director comments. 

 

J. Adjournment.  Having no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 7:30 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

     

Wanda Haney 

Executive Assistant 

 

 



1    Planning Commission Work Session Minutes - 10/26/15. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commissioners Present:  Jim Patrick, Lee Hardy, Mike Franklin, Rod Croteau, Bill Branigan, and Bob Berman. 

 

Planning Commissioners Absent:  Gary East.     

 

PC Citizens Advisory Committee Members Absent:  Dustin Capri (excused).   

 

City Staff Present:  Community Development Director (CDD) Derrick Tokos and Executive Assistant Wanda Haney.  

 

Chair Patrick called the Planning Commission work session to order at 6:02 p.m. and turned the meeting over to CDD Tokos.      

 

A.    New Business. 

 

1.    Initial discussion about recreational marijuana.  Tokos said he would spend most of the time running through his cover 

memo, Attachment 2, and Attachment 7; but he was happy to talk about other things as well.  He said this is a lot to digest.  He 

noted that there were a couple of items being distributed tonight that were not included in the packet.  One was a copy of an 

email from Police Chief Mark Miranda raising the question of whether preschools or daycares should be pulled into the spacing 

distance.  The other piece that is new and not in the packets is the draft land use compatibility statement.  He said this is a 

document that is provided as part of the application.  He doesn’t know the logistics of whether OLCC sends it to us or the 

applicant brings it in.  He noted that this is the type of form OLCC will be looking for before a license is issued.  We deal with 

these forms for other agencies such as the Department of State Lands and DEQ.  This form is consistent with those other land 

use compatibility forms.  What Tokos looks at is that they don’t ask us questions we can’t answer.  This is much like the DSL 

form where it’s marked that either the use is allowed, it was not allowed, or we don’t know yet because they have to go through 

some land use review.  He said he doesn’t have a lot of heartburn with this form.  He noted that this is a draft form that he got 

through the League of Oregon Cities.   

 

Tokos noted that in his cover memo he took the time to break down how the existing land use rules would apply to recreational 

marijuana facilities.  First he looked at the residential zoning districts.  In the zoning ordinance, the permitted uses are listed 

specifically and are predominantly residential.  R-4 allows a conditional use for professional offices, and hospitals are allowed 

out right.  But basically you’re talking about single-family, duplex, or triplex.  The only way they could try to horseshoe into this 

district is to approach it as a commercial use in a residential area.  They could try to claim this as an accessory use.  He said that 

won’t fly because it isn’t customary; it hasn’t been legal so they can’t get there.  Rod noted that in their rules the OLCC makes 

provisions for processors, retailers, and wholesalers.  He said why it wouldn’t be covered under accessory use is documented on 

pages 12, 17, and 36 of Attachment 5.  Tokos said the Denial of Application is what he looked at on page 11 of Attachment 5.  

He said you will note that those who are currently medical dispensaries have to make a choice; it’s not a dual setup moving 

forward.  He noted that the one about the proposed licensed premises of a wholesaler was added; it wasn’t in the October 15 th 

version that he had worked off of.  The October 21st draft came out just before the meeting packets were prepared; and then 

OLCC had a final draft on October 22nd.  Croteau noted that it mentions prohibited in an area zoned residential; so wholesalers 

are out.  He pointed out number 3c on page 17 eliminates processors.  Then on page 36 it mentions retail premises.  Tokos said 

under number 3 on page 17 it also states that a retailer may not be located within 1,000 feet of schools or within an area zoned 

exclusively residential.  He said, but what do they mean by exclusively residential use; would that be in R-4 because it does allow 

other uses.  He doesn’t believe we have much in the way of exposure in the residential zones.  He said somebody could try to 

horseshoe it in through a home occupation.  For something like a home grow, that’s the only place he sees it potentially landing.  

But with a home occupation, it can’t be outdoors.  There can be no display of the business outside the residence.  They can’t have 

employees; and if it’s retail, they’re limited to 8 vehicle trips per day.  Hardy asked what if they’re wholesale.  Tokos said that 

might work; but only 25% of the structure can be utilized for the business.  Croteau said maybe a lab; and Tokos agreed maybe 

that.  Tokos wondered on the flip side, if the Commissioners thought that the home occupation standards are transparent in the 

neighborhood.  He asked if they’re doing growing in a shop where nobody sees it and they’re not aware it’s there; is it a problem 

then?  Hardy said maybe not if it’s just a grow operation, but if they start extracting that could be something else.  Tokos said 

clearly that’s covered through OLCC rules.  Hardy said, but you have to know it’s going on to enforce it.  Berman said that he 

didn’t see any problem on the residential side.  Other restrictions will limit them so much; it’s not financially viable, or it’s so 

small of an operation that it doesn’t bother anybody.  Tokos said he’s not sure they will get a home occupation.  He said we have 

had some folks “tire-kicking” about vacant lots for growing.  They can’t go with that because it’s a commercial use in a residential 

zone.  Franklin said there are your “average Joes” that are growing their four plants and selling those directly to the dispensaries.  

Draft MINUTES 

City of Newport Planning Commission 

Work Session 

Newport City Hall Conference Room A 

October 26, 2015 

6:00 p.m. 

 



2    Planning Commission Work Session Minutes - 10/26/15. 

Tokos said they are providing surplus plants to dispensaries; that’s how the program works.  Rod thought furnishing is well 

covered there.  Branigan asked is Tokos knew what other jurisdictions are doing; and Tokos said he didn’t.  Hardy asked if the 

County is doing anything.  Tokos said he knew they have something for grow operations.  

 

Tokos said on the commercial and industrial side of zoning, we have use categories and don’t spell out what specific uses are 

allowed.  They’re general by the character and the nature of the use; like bulk retail, manufacturing, wholesale sales, etc.  We 

don’t have anything for agriculture.  If the Commission feels it’s appropriate, that’s one where we could define agriculture as to 

how and where it’s permissible.  He said if the Commissioners think growing is part of the manufacturing operation, then it’s  

permitted in C-3 and the industrial zones.  It would have to be entirely indoors unless it’s in I-3.  Branigan asked what about in 

the UGB.  Tokos said this only applies to those properties that are annexed.  The County’s rules apply until they’re annexed.  

Berman wondered what the designation around the reservoir is.  Tokos said it’s Public, so you don’t have to worry there.  Once 

it’s annexed, it will be under Public zoning; and we are in the process of annexing the property we own.  Everything else would 

still be under the county’s Timber Conservation.  Croteau asked if they didn’t have to get an agriculture permit to grow.  Tokos 

said they would deal with the Department of Agriculture because it’s a crop just like any other.  Croteau wondered about those 

lands that are under Timber Conservation; and Tokos said he’s not sure how that will play out.  Patrick said it’s reasonable to 

expect that they can grow in the industrial zones and in C-3; it’s manufacturing.  Tokos said it would be conditional in C-3 and 

outright in all of the industrial zones.  Patrick said they could do selling in the industrial zones.  Tokos said retail sales are a go 

in all commercial zones.  Patrick said, and retail growing in C-3.  Tokos said that I-1 would be good too for retail sales.  Patrick 

asked if the City’s GIS is good, once we figure out roughly what goes where, could Tokos show maps where it could be and 

what it could be and maybe highlight all the ones that are all residential.  Tokos said you’re looking at the highway corridors 

really.  South Beach has I-1 zoning.  There’s C-3 on US 20 and a pocket on US 101 up by 12th Street; the rest of 101 is C-1 and 

will be retail.  The last I-1 is way up north by 73rd Street; I-1 and I-2.  McLean Point has industrial, but it won’t be a marijuana 

operation.  There’s fourteen acres by Wilder where the temporary batch plant was located.  That was purchased for heavy 

industrial use at some point.  There’s more light industrial down by the airport; but it’s not currently serviced.  The I-2 property 

up north is Paul Larson’s shovel-ready land.  Across from that will be PUD’s new yard; so much of the I-1 will be gone up there.  

Tokos doesn’t know what will happen with Larson’s I-2.  Larson’s working on wetland mitigation and re-authorizing the shovel-

ready status so it doesn’t expire; but he has nobody interested in the property.  Tokos said that the light industrial in South Beach 

is probably where we would have some exposure.  There’s a fair amount down there.   

 

Berman said a grow operation has to almost be indoors.  Tokos said he didn’t know.  He’s not sure how these things would be 

set up.  He expects that you may find a number of different licenses because they’re doing a number of different things; growing, 

processing, packaging, distributing; wholesaling.  There may be multiple licenses.  You could have a situation where you could 

have a retail component too.  Berman wondered how this parallels to liquor; things like brew pubs and distilleries.  Tokos said 

they’re not that much different.  Some are strictly retail.  They have to go through the state license as liquor dispensary.  It’s an 

OLCC synced venue.  The oversight is a little more restrictive in that regard.  He mentioned that Rouge has their distillery and 

then their little sales boutique; and Hood River has some combined in one location.  You can see the different ways this gets 

packaged.   

 

Tokos said if the Commissioners felt it’s appropriate, we could do a land use to deal with agriculture as its own category.  Or if 

you feel it’s reasonable as is, then we don’t need to worry about making changes.  Croteau said he’s good with this.  Patrick said 

he wouldn’t want to see open grows that become an attractive nuisance.  Tokos said the only way that could happen is on I-3 

property.  That’s the only place they could do it.  In I-1 and C-3, it has to be indoors.  Franklin didn’t think we have the climate 

to support it here.  Patrick said he didn’t want to test it.  Croteau said they would need a fence, security, and cameras.  Tokos 

noted that you can’t do razor wire unless it’s zoned Public.  Patrick said so all they could do is a regular fence.  Tokos said they 

could get a building permit and do a concrete wall.  Berman and Branigan didn’t think it would be a problem.  Tokos said we 

don’t have much I-3 land.  Tokos said he expects to see GVR going a different direction with that property.  It is 14 acres and is 

attractive for bulk retail (like Lowes and other large commodity stores).   

 

Berman asked Tokos what his feelings were.  Does this need firming up, or is it good enough that it won’t be a problem in the 

foreseeable future.  Tokos said he doesn’t think we have much in the way of exposure for an outdoor grow.  It can’t be in a 

residential zone.  It’s pretty defensive except for I-3, and we don’t have a lot of that.  Hardy said the climate will take care of the 

rest of it.  Tokos said they could do an outdoor grow, but there’s not a lot of exposure.  Patrick said manufacturing or indoor 

grows could be in C-3 and the industrial zones.  Tokos said in C-3 it’s a conditional use.  Patrick asked, and if they’re doing 

retail.  Tokos said it’s fair game; any commercial or light industrial zone.  There are lots of options for retail.  It could end up in 

the water-related zone through the conditional use process.  It’s outright in C-2.  So you could see it on the Bay Front much like 

the medical dispensary.  Patrick asked, but the medical dispensaries have to pick either medical or recreational.  He asked if those 

two different operations can’t be within 1,000 feet of each other.   

 

To get to that answer, Tokos moved to Attachment 7.  He said he took a stab at extending the same concept we put together for 

medical marijuana for recreational with the same allowances; mainly for the Police Department because they recognize that this 

is a controlled substance at the federal level.  He used the same kind of enhanced access and supplemental background checks.  



3    Planning Commission Work Session Minutes - 10/26/15. 

With the definitions, he ended up adjusting them so they applied to recreational marijuana as well as medical.  He defined what 

a medical and a recreational endorsement is.  He didn’t try to define all the terms that OLCC has.  He tried to keep it fairly simple.  

He noted that 4.20.015 explains to what extent a business license endorsement is required.  Section 4.20.020 (Application 

Requirements) is the same except that he had to separate the different licensing authority (OLCC).  Berman asked if it’s the same 

endorsement.  Tokos said they’re different endorsements.  We already have a medical endorsement stamp; now a recreational 

endorsement stamp will be on the business license.  Franklin wondered why the State is keeping them separate.  Tokos said to 

the legislature, it’s the framework.  Medical is different because it is all medical-related.  You’re growing for medicinal purposes 

and sharing the plants so with a prescription people can get it.  It’s more akin to a pharmacy.  What we’re now talking about is a 

regular store for sales for recreational use.  There are two different distinctions.  That’s why they’re keeping it separate.  The 

senate bill allows limited retail sales for this stop-gap term.  Tokos believes that every one of these medical dispensaries will try 

to get a recreational endorsement; but we’ll see.  Those using it for medical purposes can pick it up through a retail establishment.  

He guesses the four we have will all go for retail licenses because it’s more profitable.  That’s probably why they set up in the 

first place.  They will have to make that choice.  You can’t have medical and recreational dispensaries at the same physical 

location or address.  Berman wondered if the same person can have both.  Tokos would guess.  You could potentially have unit 

A as a medical dispensary and Unit B as recreational.  He doesn’t think that the current facilities are set up so they could do that; 

they are single-address-type operations.   

 

Berman noted a typo in 4.20.020 (E) where the word should be “person” not “personal”.  Tokos said the only change in 

“Application” was to roll in OLCC.  Hardy asked on the first page in the second to last paragraph, what “commercial recreation 

use” is.  Tokos said that is as opposed to growing your own plants and smoking them.  You are making money off of it.  He 

pulled that out of the Administrative Rule; but he can put “commercial recreational purposes” instead of “use.”   

 

Tokos noted that under 4.20.025 (Agreement), at the time he didn’t have all of the Administrative Rule sites, so that is why they 

are highlighted in yellow.  Patrick asked if recreational facilities are doing video surveillance the same as the medical facilities.  

Tokos confirmed that.  He said these provisions are all in here.  OLCC didn’t draft it necessarily the same as under OHA, but the 

same things are theoretically covered.  OLCC says they have the authority to perform background checks; but they didn’t say 

how extensively they would; so he put in language that the Police Department may accept background checks done by OLCC.  

That’s why that flexibility language is in there.  The licensee will get background checks and any employees either by the state 

or the city.  Branigan said it says the individual can’t have been convicted of the manufacture or delivery of a controlled substance; 

it doesn’t say they can’t have been a convicted rapist or something.  Hardy said it does say they shall be of good moral character; 

but that’s also not defined.  Tokos said that is what we used for medical marijuana, so he used the same.  That is a tough spot for 

the City to go down.  The Police Department seemed happy with that language.  Regarding alarms, Hardy thought you could 

stipulate that the alarm answering point notify the police.  Berman said that’s how it’s stated now.  Branigan said under the 

background checks, he didn’t see anything prohibiting someone from carrying a gun into a recreational marijuana shop.  Tokos 

said you can’t if they have a concealed weapons permit.  Patrick said the only place is on federal property.  Tokos thought the 

concept on background checks is clear.  There’s probably good public policy on why not to have people convicted of crimes.  

Berman said the absolute background check will show that.  Hardy said you can’t get background checks from some states.  

Berman said apparently the police are happy with the way it’s going.  He asked if someone released from prison after serving 

time for murder would be of good moral character.  Tokos said that would be OLCC’s call.  Obviously, if somebody is convicted 

of heroin possession, they are not going to be able to work there.  The product is still a controlled substance at the federal level, 

and if they’ve violated the controlled substance act and had a conviction for marijuana, they can’t work in the facility.  He said 

you could liken it to if you’ve had a DUI, you shouldn’t be working as a bus driver.  Tokos said we have a fee resolution, and he 

assumes it will be the same as for medical endorsement.   

 

Section 4.20.040 (Issuance) gets at the 1,000 feet.  That’s the way Tokos drafted it, but the Commission has options here.  He 

drafted it as 1,000 feet from another facility that is retail to retail; which means you can have wholesale next door, or medical, or 

anything of that nature.  He said the reasoning is that if you had three or four retail locations next to each other say on the Bay 

Front, in Nye Beach, or City Center, it could change the character and be detrimental to other businesses.  Tokos was asked if 

we do that for anything else.  Tokos said for medical marijuana, and we’re treating recreational just like those if this is put in 

place.  That’s the state law for medical; and this concept extends the same restriction that’s on medical facilities to recreational 

facilities.  The question was raised if the OLCC looks at bars and how close they are; and it was thought that there is something 

in the rules.  Tokos said we have four dispensaries, and we would have more if not for the 1,000 feet state law.  Whether they’d 

all be successful, he doesn’t know.  Patrick said it’s a gold rush right now.  Berman wondered why OLCC didn’t put it in when  

it was on the medical facilities.  He said they must have thought about it.  Tokos said he was told that some larger metro areas 

like Portland didn’t want it.  That’s probably why they left it to the local jurisdictions.  That way those that want it can do it; and 

those that don’t want to do it don’t have to.  He said if we were to adopt it, we’re not treating recreational any differently than 

medical marijuana; it’s not to anyone’s advantage then.  It does limit the total number in the community.  There are only so many 

commercial properties that are that far apart, and then if you factor in the schools.  We have four medical marijuana facilities and 

can have recreational stores not closer than 1,000 feet to each other.  So, we’re not preventing people from having reasonable 

access to the product.  It can have detrimental effects elsewhere.  We’ve had comments that some don’t like the facility on the 

Bay Front because they thought the Bay Front was family-oriented.  Tokos said if the Commissioners don’t see a problem, maybe 



4    Planning Commission Work Session Minutes - 10/26/15. 

you don’t want the spacing.  If you think it could be a potential problem, then maybe we should space them like the medical 

marijuana facilities have to do.  It allows a reasonable number.  It doesn’t impact the existing medical facilities.  Croteau thought 

that 1,000 feet is reasonable.  There could be one in Agate Beach; 15th Street is as far north as one is right now.  South Beach is 

another place you could locate.  That’s six facilities.  On US 20, that’s seven; the school locations a little tricky there though.  

Patrick said the rules say if providing education; so anything preschool with education-type stuff.  Tokos said they use different 

language; that is for medical.  This says public elementary or secondary schools or private parochial or elementary schools.  So 

it would have to be an elementary school; preschool won’t be.  Tokos said that’s what Chief Miranda was asking.  Tokos said 

there are a number of other locations where they could pop up.  Branigan asked if they can locate next to a government facility; 

and Tokos said that would be no problem.  Hatfield was mentioned; and Tokos said that Hatfield won’t happen.  It’s water-

related, but it’s Hatfield, and they won’t allow that on campus.  Berman said it’s also not elementary or secondary.  Tokos thought 

that OCCC doesn’t get hooked.  This is talking about minors and is more oriented toward that.  Tokos said unless the Commission 

wants to delve into that, that’s OLCC’s call.  Franklin thought that 1,000 feet is fair.  Patrick thought we should make them as 

identical as possible, which would require 1,000 feet apart for retail.  Patrick said if they wanted to have them side by side, one 

medical and one recreational, that’s fine.  He doesn’t care if right behind you have a grow operation.  Tokos said you could 

require a grow operator to be 1,000 feet from retail.  Franklin asked if with a grow operation there’s a fire risk.  Croteau said not 

if it’s a typical greenhouse.  Tokos said a permit to get a grow operation will get routed through code stuff.   

 

Croteau thought this is good so far.  Tokos asked if the Commissioners were fine not going with daycares; and just go with what 

the state has for schools.  Croteau said he can see an issue with minors; not preschoolers.  They are too small.  Berman thought 

that 1,000 feet was too much.  Croteau said if we reach saturation with 1,000 feet, then we can reconsider.  Tokos said if this 

proves to be problematic, that standard can always be changed; but if it has an impact, that can’t be changed.  There will be 

plenty of options for retailers.  We already have four medical facilities operating under this same paradigm.  He asked how many 

pharmacies do we have in town; about four?  Franklin thought it could start looking bad to tourists.  If there’s an abundance of 

these facilities, it does look bad to some people.  He thought 1,000 feet was fair.  Tokos said it’s a learning curve.  There are 

people that obey and people that don’t.  If we get a large concentration, we could get some blow back.  Businesses may start to 

suffer.  We may hear business owners saying that people don’t want to come to their restaurant or whatever.  That’s not 

unreasonable.  Berman thought that the wording on 4.20.040 number 7 was a little funny and not parallel to the others in structure.  

Tokos said he would adjust it. 

 

Patrick said if you go in the I-1 zone, you could grow indoors, have a retail operation, and a medical operation.  Tokos said the 

retail and medical would have to be a separate location under the State’s rules for medical.  If they have a different address and 

location, that’s okay; such as unit A and unit B.  He said you could have a situation where you have everything from grow to 

retail, and maybe some distribution could be intertwined if they meet the State’s rules and get licenses.  Berman wondered if 

OLCC is going to treat existing medical as priority in getting licenses.  Tokos didn’t know the state’s procedure there.   

 

Tokos thought it’s prudent to get these changes on the books as quickly as we can.  He said our office will get hit with questions 

as people get ready to submit for licenses in January.  Berman thought it would be good to do an outreach to the four medical 

places and tell them what is happening; and if they want to switch over, they better get in early.  Hardy thought the City needs to 

be careful doing that, and Croteau agreed.  Tokos said we can let them know what the rules are and that they are welcome to 

attend the hearing on the business license stuff.  He doesn’t know if we want to get into what OLCC will do.  That is their job; 

and he thinks they are probably on it.  Croteau thought that they all are probably doing retail now.  Tokos said, which tells him 

they are already talking to OLCC.  Hardy said the two products are not vastly different.  Tokos said the difference is 

administrative.  Patrick thinks that the medical dispensaries will go away.  There may be some in the county.  Tokos said maybe 

it’s more socially acceptable to say medical.  It’s easier to do retail than medical, and it’s more profitable too.  Berman said there 

are some nonprofits in the medical dispensary business to help people who have a need.  Patrick said there probably will be at 

least one because they see a need.  He expects the price to come down.  Tokos said, as Patrick had mentioned, it’s a gold rush to 

be at the beginning of something.  It will settle out.  Some businesses will stick, and some will not.   

 

Going on, Tokos noted that 4.20.045 explains that endorsements aren’t transferrable; which is the same concept.  Berman asked 

what if a retail store gets sold and they want to do an endorsement because they are buying this business and somebody comes 

in with an application the day before.  Tokos said that is a State function.  For us, it’s nontransferable; and they know that.  He 

said for example say the operator at the operation on 15th Street sells his business, they want to make sure whoever is buying it 

is licensed and gets in and gets their business license.  They can protect themselves.  Patrick said they have to get their license 

before they can operate.   

 

Under Section 4.20.050 (Inspection), Tokos added recreational to it.  It’s still that the City can conduct inspections.  For Section 

4.20.055 (Revocation), Tokos did add language under number 3 to cover the current interim period of time where because of 

Senate Bill 460 medical facilities can actually market retail so that their endorsement can’t be revoked while they’re permitted 

to do retail.  Berman wondered if under B3 where it talks about any marijuana items, if those are things with THC in them, or 

paraphernalia, or what.  Tokos said it’s spelled out under number 6.  He can move that to number 3.  That’s how it’s defined by 

OLCC.  Berman wondered why a couple of these are not on the medical side.  Tokos said OHA didn’t stick it in the rules.  For 



5    Planning Commission Work Session Minutes - 10/26/15. 

medical he pulled out items that would invalidate State licensing.  It’s put in here so that if OHA or OLCC decide not to revoke 

their license, we have the authority to.  We don’t know how they are going to respond, and we may want to yank their business 

license.   

 

Tokos said the rest of the code is appeal, which is the same.  He cleaned up some cross-references that were bad.  Croteau asked 

about hours of operation.  Tokos said they are the same as liquor stores; 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.  We can set that stricter if we 

want to.  Tokos noted that the Commissioners had discussed drive-up windows; and walk-up windows were mentioned.  He said 

this is just parroting what the state has.  It was noted that the retail display has to be enclosed and has to have surveillance.  

Franklin said you have to walk into the facility; it has to be a separate room completely.                

 

Tokos asked the Commissioners if this seemed like a reasonable approach, and the consensus was that this was reasonable.  It 

parallels the State.  They thought Tokos did a good job with it.  Tokos said he will take this to the City Council work session at 

noon on November 2nd.  He said it wouldn’t hurt to have a Commissioner or two attend if you can to share your perspective.  He 

said this may not come back to the Commission.  Because it’s just a business license change, it will be just set up as a Council 

hearing; which works better anyway.     
                                                                                                         

B.    Adjournment.  Having no further discussion, the meeting adjourned at 7:11 p.m.  

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

______________________________  

Wanda Haney  

Executive Assistant  



City of Newport

Memorandum

Community Development
Department

To: Newport Planning Commission

From: Derrick Tokos, Corn mu nity Development Directoç

Re: Community Development Director’s Denial of Minor Partition (File 3-PAR-15)

Enclosed is a copy of the Community Development Director’s decision denying an application filed by
applicant and land owner, Johnathan Holbrook, for property located just north of NW 70th (a private street)
and US 101.

Mr. Holbrook owns nine parcels that are served off of a gravel, 550+?- foot long private street that
intersects with NW 70th adjacent to US 101. The first three parcels were created by Bill Buchanan in
1991. Johnathan Holbrook acquired the properties and created six additional parcels with partition plats
recorded in 2005, 2006 and 2010. The last partition implemented a tentative approval granted in 2008.
In 2009 the City of Newport overhauled its land division code and the standards applicable to the subject
application were put in place at that time.

The properties were divided through a series of partitions to avoid the requirement that a public street
and attendant utilities be installed to provide access to the properties. Mr. Holbrook has indicated as
much. The question for the Commission is the degree to which services (water, sewer, storm drainage,
streets, etc.) must be improved to support a division of land under the partition ruLes that were updated
in 2009. Earlier this year, Mr. Holbrook submitted an application to divide the parcel immediately to the
north of the subject site into two parcels (File 1-PAR-i 5). That application was ultimately returned to Mr.
Holbrook and his filing fee was refunded because neither I nor our City Engineer, Tim Gross, felt that it
could be approved in a manner consistent with the land division code without significant improvement to
the street and storm drainage system (see attached). Mr. Holbrook felt that such improvements would
be cost prohibitive. These same issues exist with the subject proposal.

The key approval standard at issue is NMC I 3.05.095(A)(5), which reads:

“Public facilities serving the partition are adequate under Section 73.05.045. Proposed
Streets within the partition comply with the standards under Section 73.05.015, including
any allowed modifications or a variance has been obtained.”

The first sentence of the criterion states “Public facilities serving the partition are adequate under Section
13.05.045.” This standard provides that a land division may only be approved if the public facility and
utility providers confirm in writing that they can adequately provide service to the proposed land division
(NMC 13.05.045(A)). Utility providers that must sign-off are those that provide electricity and phone
service. Mr. Holbrook included letters with his appeal from Central Lincoln and Century Link that indicate
they can serve the development. It is reasonable for the Commission to accept these letters as satisfying
the requirement relative to electricity and phone service. As for public facilities (water, sewer, streets,
and storm drainage), the City relies upon a letter from the Public Works Department to establish whether
or not these services are adequate. Tim Gross, City Engineer, has prepared such a letter (enclosed).
The letter indicates that the existing private street would need to be improved with curb, gutter, drainage

Page 1 of3

Date: November 4, 2015



structures, an aggregate base, and paving in order for it to be adequate to serve additional parcels. Mr.
Gross further notes that a road-side ditch storm drainage conveyance system was never installed as
originally envisioned to serve the existing parcels (Partition 5-PAR-05, “Holbrook Estates”). Lastly, Mr.
Gross notes that water and sewer service is adequate to support additional parcels; however, work may
be needed to ensure each proposed parcel has separate sewer services that extend to the City sewer
main and that those services are contained within private sewer easements for maintenance purposes.

With respect to the second sentence of NMC 13.05.095(A)(5), the Director’s decision finds that the
existing private street is a “proposed street” because the parcels that it will serve don’t exist yet. It is the
proposed street access for those parcels and is located within the partition. Mr. Holbrook’s argument is
that a street is ‘proposed” only if it is being modified or extended. The Commission will need to decide
which approach is the more appropriate interpretation. If the Commission agrees with the Director then
the private street must be improved to a standard that meets the provisions of NMC 13.05.015, which
include the provision of a 50-foot right-of-way and 36-foot wide roadway. The City Engineer’s concern
that the existing private street and storm drainage system is inadequate and needs to be improved to a
36-foot wide paved section, with associated drainage improvements, dovetails with this requirement. The
applicant did not apply for a variance to these standards and a hearing regarding a variance would need
to be noticed. It is also unlikely that a variance could be justified, as there is no hardship or practical
difficulty in constructing a larger street. It is a cost issue.

The approval authority may modify the street standards (NMC 13.05.015(A)). In doing so, it must
consider the location, width and grade of streets in relation to existing and planned streets, topographical
or other geographical/environmental conditions, public convenience and safety, and the proposed use of
land to be served by the streets. The Commission cannot reasonably accomplish this with the information
provided for a two parcel partition. Mr. Holbrook would need to provide a buildout plan for how he intends
to further divide the existing nine parcels (i.e. the neighborhood”) in order for the Commission to
determine if topographical or other conditions make conformance to the street standards listed above
impractical. This has typically been accomplished through the review and approval of a Planned
Development. Both Tim and I have advised Mr. Holbrook that he has the option of submitting an
application for a Planned Development to put in place alternative street standards. That type of process
often involves tradeoffs, like reservation of open space, trails, etc., but is a tool that applicants have
successfully used to develop reduced street sections, such as a 24 foot wide, paved street section that
the Commission recently approved for the Wilder development.

Accepting Mr. Holbrook’s view that, for the purposes NMC 13.05.095(A)(5), a “proposed street” only
exists if it is being modified or extended would create a circumstance where anybody could blade in a
roadway of any size, length or grade, no matter how inadequate it may be, and then later come in to
partition a property two or three parcels at a time and claim that the road is an existing private street
exempt from city standards that would otherwise require it be upgraded to adequately serve the new
parcels. It would also undermine a distinction the City built into its definition of street” which notes that
a public or private way becomes a street within the meaning of the land division code if it serves more
than four individual lots or parcels (NMC 13.05.005(J)). Otherwise, it is a driveway that is not regulated
by the land division code. This distinction was made intentionally to establish a maximum number of lots
or parcels that can be served off of an unregulated roadway. Once enough lots are created through a
partition or subdivision process it becomes a private street subject to improvement standards in NMC
13.05.015. With Mr. Holbrook’s interpretation, the City would never get to the construction standards for
a private street that is already in place unless an applicant happened to propose a change to the street.
For these reasons, if the Commission agrees with Mr. Holbrook’s reading of the code, it should consider
updating the Municipal Code to eliminate this pathway to circumventing street improvement standards
that were put in place to ensure that new parcels possess adequate access.

In his appeal, Mr. Holbrook cites Chapter 14.44, Transportation Standards, as allowing exceptions to
street standards listed in N MC 13.05.015. While it is correct that this Chapter allows the City to accept a
future improvement guarantee in lieu of actual street improvements, the conditions by which the City is
allowed to accept such a “future street guarantee” have not been met. Mc. Holbrook claims that his
proposal qualifies for two of the conditions, the first of which states:

“Due to the developed condition of adjacent properties it is unlikely that street improvements
would be extended in the foreseeable future and the improvement associated with the project

Page 2 of 3



under review does not, by itself, provide increased street safety or capacity, or improved
pedestrian circulation.”

Parcels to the north are served off of the same substandard private street, and the street is narrower as
it extends north and does not appear to be fully constructed with respect to the northern most parcels.
The lots are of a size where they can be further divided and Mr. Holbrook has indicated an interest in
further dividing the properties. Therefore, it is reasonable for the Commission to find that the developed
condition of these properties is such that it is likely that the private street will need to be improved to
adequately serve the adjacent properties and that requiring the portion of the private street associated
with the proposed partition to be improved increases street safety, capacity, and improves pedestrian
circulation. Mr. Holbrook also claims that the following condition would allow for a non-remonstrance
agreement to be accepted:

‘The improvement is associated with an approved land partition or minor replat and the
proposed land partition does not create any new streets.”

The application before the Commission is not an approved land partition or minor replat, and as noted
above the street is new in the context of the two parcels that Mr. Holbrook wants to create. For these
reasons it is reasonable for the Commission to find that this condition has not been met.

It is relevant to note that Chapter 14.44, which was adopted by the City in 2012 as part of it Transportation
System Plan update, was put in place to establish standards for responding to development of existing
infill lots, not land divisions. Chapter 14.44 specifically notes that streets within or adjacent to a
development subject to Chapter 13.05, Subdivision and Partition, are to be improved in accordance with
the Transportation System Plan and the street standards of Section 13.05.015 (ref: NMC
14.44.050(A)(2)) and the City has not applied Chapter 14.44 to land division applications.

Considering the above, and information contained in the case record, the Commission will need to
determine if Mr. Holbrook’s application satisfies the approval standards, or can satisfy the approval
standards through the imposition of reasonable conditions. If the Commission cannot find that the
standards have been met, or can be met with reasonable conditions, then the application must be denied.
The Commission should clearly articulate its reasoning and may direct staff to prepare findings and a
final order consistent with its direction for consideration at its November 23, 2015 meeting.

It is my recommendation that the Commission carefully consider the adequacy of the street and storm
drainage conveyance system that would serve the proposed parcels. If it accepts that the street must be
improved to a 36-foot paved section in order to satisfy NMC 13.05.095(A)(5), then it must consider
whether or not imposing a condition that the applicant construct the improvements is reasonable. This
stretch of private street is approximately 140-feet in length from US 101 to the point where the street
meets the north line of proposed Parcel 1. In determining whether or not the improvement is reasonable,
the Commission should consider whether or not it appears to be roughly proportional to the impact of
creating two new parcels. If the Commission believes the requirement is toughly proportional then it
should impose the condition. If it does not, then it should deny the partition on the basis that the street
access and associated storm drainage system is not adequate to serve additional parcels. If the
Commission feels that the street improvement condition is reasonable, then it should also consider
imposing a condition that individual sewer services be installed and private sewer maintenance
easements be put in place as recommended by the City Engineer.

Exhibits

Exhibit 1: Memo from Tim Gross, City Engineer, dated 11-3-15, with reduced copy of Partition File
No. 05-PAR-OS as-built drawings

Exhibit 2: Memo from Rob Murphy, Fire Marshall, dated 11-2-15
Exhibit 3: Correspondence/maps from File 1-PAR-15 (fee refunded and application returned)
Exhibit 4: Appeal by John Holbrook, with attachments, dated 10-9-15
ExhibitS: Community Development Director Final Order and Findings of Fact for File 3-PAR-is),

dated 9-24-15
Exhibit 6: Application and related materials for File 3-PAR-is
Exhibit 7: NMC Chapter 13.05, Subdivision and Partition
Exhibit 8: NMC Chapter 14.44, Transportation Standards

Page 3 of 3



EXHIBIT I

MEMO

______

Date: November 3, 2015

To: Derrick Tokos, City Planner

From: Timothy Gross, Director of Public Works! City Engineer

Re: Adequacy of City facilities for 60 NW 70th St (10-11-20-BC-00607)

This memo is in response to the requirements of Section 13.05.045 requiring confirmation of
public services for the division of property within the City limits.

1. Water Services: City water is provided by a 6” PVC main located within the property.
This line provide sufficient water capacity and pressure for domestic and fire needs.

2. Sanitary Sewer Services: City sanitary sewer service is provided by 8” PVC mains and the
NW 70th St Pump Station, located west of the property. These facilities are sufficient to
meet the capacity needs of the property. Note that the downstream Agate Beach
system has capacity issues, however no moratorium on new development has been
imposed and the on-going Agate Beach Wastewater Collection Systems Improvements
Project will address these capacity issues.

Proposed lots within the land division are required to have separate sewer services from
the property to the public main. Easements shall be recorded in the interest of the
served property whenever the service crosses private property. These easements shall
be wide enough to allow maintenance of the proposed service

3. Storm Sewer: There is no City storm sewer adjacent to the property. Existing runoff
from the property flows through a private culvert to a nearby ravine. The existing roads
were not built to the width nor cross section as shown in the original partition file
labeled Holbrook Estates. There are no ditches on the sides of the road and the water
essentially sheets until it finds a low spot. Storm drainage needs to be addressed when
the streets are improved. Please see paragraph 4 below.

4. Street accessibility, availability, capacity and condition: The property is accessed directly
from US-lOl via a private street. There are no adjacent City streets. The access to the
land division as proposed does not meet City standards.

Streets will need to be improved in accordance with section 13.05.040.A.1 of the City
code including but not limited to curb and gutter, drainage structures, aggregate base
and paving to a width of 36 feet.

Page lof 2



Based upon discussions City Staff have had with Mr. Holbrook, and upon the land
division requests, it appears the applicant is attempting to add more density to the
original partition while avoiding public improvements by systematically applying for lot
divisions. The applicant has stated that he doesn’t want to make the investment that
requited public improvements would necessitate.

The City code was written with the intent to ensure adequate public street
improvements are provided when land is developed over a particular density. This
ensures safe access for residents, public safety vehicles and maintenance vehicles;
prevents local flooding; and improves the quality of life and land values for future
residents. Although in this instance my comments are based solely on the application
for land division, the development needs to be considered holistically, and the long term
impact of continual lot division without adequate public access considered. lithe
applicant wants to implement a lesser standard for public streets, the PUD process
should be considered.

Page 2of2



H
O

L
B

R
O

O
K

E
S

T
A

T
E

S
-

PA
R

T
IT

IO
N

FI
L

E
N

o.
05

-P
A

R
-0

5

\
\

\
\

2

/
/

j
!
=

f
l
j
3

3

Q
R

r
o
r
J
o
r
H

(
a
H

W
A

70

A
SB

U
IL

T

N
E

W
PO

R
T

,
O

R
E

G
O

N

SC
or

.
-

3
1

2
U

lc
E

r
E

A
SE

M
E

N
T

L
E

G
E

N
D

M
O

R
E

O
E

T
M

O
O

L
O

T
O

W
E

A
TM

)
E

A
SE

M
E

N
T

2
2
1
0
5
5
5

1
0
2

3
3

)0
5

E
A

S
E

M
E

N
T

S
0
5
0
0
0
0
1
0

A
E

05
U

O
T

3
2

0
0

7
0

0
3

0
0

0
5

1
00

5
2
0
0
0
0
)1

7
8

0 © 0 *
0

5
—



j
J
n
c
.

B
ak

er
b
si

g
n

En
gi

n€
er

in
g

6
0

6
2

k
o

L’
.

.E

OR
9
7
.3

2
5 5

0
3

5
1

O
If

l2
D

FA
X

-
5

Q
3

j7
4

9
I4

E
I

I
E

C
IA

L
L

W
*I

E
R

16
IT

S
&

S
T

W
I
E

6f
l

F
’ ‘C

2 0

o o

A
0 I
!

o

a
0
’

—
-

—
7
’-

-
-
-
—

.J
:

I:

C
01

54
C

C
lI

O
N

S

SA
lE

S
S

tI
E

S
S

f5
0

0
1

S
0

r
22

.5
0

9
0

5

A
S

B
U

IL
T

C
R

O
X

C
T

S
O H
O

C
O

51
O

C
IV

IL
9

5
0

6
1

IS
5
IS

B
€
R

—
—

2
/3



nc
.

B
ak

er
bt

si
gn

E
n
in

er
in

g

60
62

K
A

*
A

Cn
SE

A
,,,

s,
dI

e.
OR

97
32

5 50
31

51
01

fl
20

tA
R

50
31

74
91

1*
61

EE
E

-
-
-
-

-

H
I

L
z
t

E
-H

EH
1

—
-

tz
Lz

z:
tt

z
zz

tj
ll

+‘
r+

L
E

L
E

i
J
Z

HE
f
t
r

Ji
—

SA
M

IT
A

R
Y

S
H

R
if

T
L

A
T

E
R

A
L

S
C

H
E

D
U

L
E

L
A

L
A

W
SA

N
’

T
U

IT
SE

R.
€f

l
LA

TI
R

A
LA

A
r

OL
E

0
1
3
4

6
4
0
1

C
A

L
P

3
6
*
0
W

C
A

P
S

1
0
0
U

W
4
W

U

v
o

j—
0
1

tn
z 0

-

o o 0
0

1 z 01 UT

C
, C, a a
,

C
, 2 C 0
,

a C A
-

40
46

4

‘S
E

W
E

R
P

R
O

F
IL

E

0
0
0
W

W
S

O
A

R
S

30
P

L
C

F6
**

L
C

M
A

IL

4
6

*
\\

I
—

PR
O

PO
SE

D
SA

O
H

A
R

P
SE

W
ER

30
34

P
0

0
0

0
5

W
S

F
0

0
4

0
0

50
00

C
C

C
3
0
3
4

6*
04

0*
06

*1
42

W
M

ET
A

L

V
I

C
O

P
S

6*
W

4A
01

0*
50

46

P
0

5
W

6
*
S

4
0
U

I

A
M

C
H

L
.
S

:
T

\
.
5

_

-
—

.m
-
s
-

0
O

0
=

SA
N

IT
A

R
Y

S
E

W
E

R
PL

A
N

9
ii

iE
T

.A
o

ta
r:

IZ

-O
L

O
51

4
2

0
0

7
W

A
R

S
-

*
0

5
6

*
0

5
,

PU
S

a
v

n
.

SL
EE

T
M

A
U

R
EW

—
—

--
-—

3
/3

A
SB

U
IL

T



EXHIBIT 2

INewport i.re uept.

Memo
To; Derrick Tokos, Community Development Director

From: Rob Murphy, Fire Chief

Date: November 2, 2015

Re; Appeal of minor partition #3-PAR-15

I was asked to provide comment on the appeal of minor partition #3-PAR-15 of tax lot 607 of the
Lincoln County Assessor’s Office map no. 10-11-20-BC submitted by Jon Holbrook. The lot in
question has an address of 60 NW 70th Street in Newport.

The Fire Department does not have issue with the partition request. The access provided to tax
lot 607 meets the requirements of the Oregon Fire Code as adopted by ordinance by the City of
Newport.

Please let me know if you have any further questions on this matter. Thank you,

Rob Murphy

Fire Chief

Newport Fire Department



EXHIBIT 3
Derrick Tokos

From: Jon <custhome@hotmail.com>
Sent: Friday, April 10, 2015 4:24 PM
To: Derrick Tokos
Subject: RE: Your Partition Proposal (File 1-PAR-i 5)

This appears to be reasonable documentation for denial, although I do feel there is a large gray area involved
and it was clearly a judgement call on Tim’s part as it is arguable that services are adequate enough that he
could have approved it. This is extremely unfortunate for me and also for the city in that it will deny me a
retirement and the city a substantial income from future development. I do believe with some minor
improvements that I could have made the road totally adequate for the light traffic involved. I felt that Tim
was not open to negotiation on these points and, as a public servant, could certainly be more amenable and
accommodating to longtime locals like me. I look forward to the day that Tim no longer works for the City. I
formally withdraw my application and thank you for providing a refund.

I do wish to meet with you and Spencer Nebel on the NW 70th Street issue. I absolutely do not agree with
your and Tim’s viewpoint on this and feel the residents of NW 70th are being shortchanged for no reason. Let
me know when you can meet.
ion Holbrook
Jon Holbrook Design
405 SE Scenic Loop
Newport, OR 97365
Ph. 541-265-9366

From: D.Tokos@NewportOregon.gov
To: custhome@hotmail.com
CC: T.Gross@NewportOregon.gov; S.Nebel@NewportOregon.gov
Subject: Your Partition Proposal (File 1-PAR-is)
Date: Fri, 10 Apr 2015 22:44:17 +0000

Hi ion,

As I mentioned when we met, in putting together a draft decision it became apparent that your application for a
partition does not satisfy the approval criteria for that type of request. The memo that I prepared following the meeting
lists the specific criteria that are an issue, but I have tried below to more specifically outline why your application, as
submitted, cannot be approved. I would like to help you get to a positive outcome, and believe that you might be able
to get there through a planned development. You would still have to further improve the road, but likely not to the full
extent that the City’s land division code would otherwise require.

If you withdraw the partition before a decision is rendered we can provide you with a refund of your filing fee. On the
other hand, if you want to proceed with the proposal, I’ll prepare a decision denying the application that you can then
appeal to the Newport Planning Commission. The fee for that would be $250.00. Perhaps you can think about it over
the weekend and then let me know how you would like to proceed first thing next week.

Here are reasons why your partition request cannot be approved.

1



Partition applications are required to satisfy the approval criteria listed under NMC 13.05.095. One of those approval
criteria, NMC 13.05.095fA)(5) reads as follows:

“Public facilities serving the minor replat or partition are adequate under Section 13.05.045. Proposed streets
within the minor replat or partition comply with the standards under Section 13.05.015, including any allowed
modification, or a variance has been obtained.”

I’ll address the second part of this criterion first as it is the most straightforward. The term “street” is defined as:

“Street. A public or private way other than a driveway that is created to provide ingress or egress for persons to
one or more lots, parcels, areas, or tracts of land. For the purposes of this section, a “driveway” is a private way
that begins at a public right-of-way that is proposed to serve not more than four individual lots/parcels cumulative
as the primary vehicular access to those individual lots/parcels.”

The parcel that you want to create with this partition will be served by a 15-foot wide gravel roadway that has been
constructed within a 25-foot wide private access easement. The roadway serves more than four parcels therefore
by this definition it is a street that must meet the provisions of Section 13.05.015. Those provisions require the
right-of-way (easement) be 50-feet in width and that the travelled roadway be at least 36-feet in width (NMC
13.05.015(B)). There are other standards that trigger as well, such as the provision of sidewalks, and a restriction
that a dead-end roadway such as this not exceed 400-feet. The tentative plan that you provided does not show
how the roadway will be improved to these street standards and from our conversation it did not sound like you
believe it would be economically feasible to do so.

The other part of this partition approval criterion states “Public facilities serving the minor replat or partition are
adequate under Section 13.05.045.” The section referenced, 13.05.045, provides that a tentative plan for a
partition may only be approved if public facilities can be provided to adequately service the land division as
demonstrated by written letter from the public service provider. This dovetails with another partition approval
criterion, NMC 13.05.095(A)(3), which requires a finding that the tentative plan will not interfere with the provision
of key public facilities. Our City Engineer, Tim Gross, is charged with preparing the service provider letter relating
to water, sewer, storm drainage, and street services. At our meeting on Wednesday, Tim explained that he is not
prepared to draft a letter finding that these services are adequate to serve an additional parcel. He explained his
reasoning, which I’ll not try to parrot. I appreciate that this is a discretionary determination on his part; however,
as a licensed engineer his views are considered to be expert testimony in this regard. I would also note that such a
determination is relevant to your proposal to create an additional parcel and has no bearing on the 9 existing
parcels that you created over the years that relay upon the gravel access road and existing utilities.

I’ll follow-up with you separately regarding the disposition of NW 70th Street, as that is a different albeit related
issue.

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport
169 SW Coast Highway
Newport, OR 9736S
ph: 541.574.0626
fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

2



Derrick Tokos

From: Derrick Tokos
Sent: Friday, Match 20, 2015 3:01 PM
To: ‘Jon
Cc: Robert Murphy; Tim Gross
Subject: Proposed Minor Partition at NW 70th Street
Attachments: comments.pdf; tentative plan.pdf; 2005 Partition Plat.pdf; 2010 Partition Plat.pdf; Fire Access

Turnaround Options.pdf

Hi ion,

Please see the attached comments from our Public Works and Fire Departments. Also, I have had a chance to review
your submittal and would appreciate if you could provide a revised drawing(s) that address the following:

1.) Please show the location of existing and proposed water and sewer service lines. The Public Works Department
will need this information in order for it to confirm that the service will be adequate pursuant to NMC
13 .05 .095(f A) (5)).

2.) 1 have enclosed the last two partition plats for the subject property. They show a number of existing
easements. Also, the Public Records Report that you included with the application lists easements that do not
appear to be shown on the tentative plan, such as Book 250, Page 500; Book 187, Page 2094; and Instrument
No. 200512067. These easements need to be shown and labeled on your tentative plan map (NMC
13.05.O7OfC)(6)(a)).

3.) The Fire Department is concerned that the access shown will not provide them sufficient area to maneuver their
equipment. Attached is a schematic drawing showing the minimum turn radius requirements. If you proceed
with a conventional hammerhead design, it appears that you will need to extend the turnaround onto Parcel 3
of Partition Plat 2010-4. That seems plausible since you own the property. An easement would need to be put
in place separate from the partition plat since that parcel is not a part of the plat. However, you can show the
easement as “to be dedicated” on this tentative plan, along with the full extent of the turnaround so that our
Fire Department can confirm that emergency access to the proposed parcels will be adequate.

Feel free to submit the revised tentative plan as multiple sheets if the drawing gets too cluttered. Also, don’t hesitate to
contact me if you have questions about information that you need to provide so that we can move this review process
to a successful conclusion.

Thank you,

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport
169 SW Coast Highway
Newport, OR 97365
ph: 541.574.0626
fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@newportoregon.gov

1



Wanda Haney

From: Robert Murphy
Sent: Tuesday, January 27, 2015 1:36 PM
To: Tim Gross; Wanda Haney; Jim Protiva; Joseph Lease; Mark Miranda; Michael Murzynsky;

Spencer Nebel; led Smith; Victor Mettle
Subject: RE: Minor Partition - File No. 1-PAR-15

I have to agree with Tim. The detail is very poor, but the way it looked like they wanted to divide the parcel would
basically land lock two of the three partitions and could potentially deny us the access we need to access these parcels.
There does not appear to be any access easements or any other easements of any kind, although with the picture being
so small it is hard to tell.

g J1uph
Fire Chief

Newport Fire Department
245 NW lath St.

Newport, OR 97365

541-265-9461

r.murphy@newportoregon.gov

From: Tim Gross
Sent: Tuesday, January 27, 2015 1:29 PM
To: Wanda Haney; Jim Protiva; Joseph Lease; Mark Miranda; Michael Murzynsky; Robert Murphy; Spencer Nebel; Ted
Smith; Victor Mettle
Subject: RE: Minor Partition - File No. 1-PAR-iS

They need to provide information regarding the availability of public services for these proposed lots as part of the
public record (i.e. water and sewer). Likewise, their access seems substandard to provide access for maintenance or
emergency vehicles; but it is hard to tell, since they did not include any dimensions in their drawing not indicate the
condition of the road or the material it is constructed from.

Timothy Gross, PE
Public Works Director/City Engineer
City of Newport
169 SW Coast Highway
Newport, OR 97365
P 541-574-3369
F 541-265-3301
C 541-961-5313

From: Wanda Haney
Sent: Tuesday, January 27, 2015 12:01 PM
To: Jim Protiva; Joseph Lease; Mark Miranda; Michael Murzynsky; Robert Murphy; Spencer Nebel; Ted Smith; Tim Gross;
Victor Mettle
Subject: Minor Partition - File No. i-PAR-15

Attached is a public notice containing a land use request. The notice contains an explanation of the request, a property
description and map, and a deadline for comments. Please review this information to see if you would like to make any

1



comments. We must receive comi. its prior to the last day of the comment period in order for them to be
considered. Should no response be received, a “no comment” will be assumed.

Thanks,

ee
City of Newport

Community Development Department

169 SW Coast Hwy

Newport, OR 97365

541-574-0629

FAX: 541-574-0644

w.hanev@)ncwportorcgon.gov

2



\.
.S

if

e<1

-

I-,

-—
--—4E-

—

—S-—

$—/

—

‘U

Z

V

5’

-

,

-—

-

/

C,”

\\

\

—.“va’
-S

—

/

-

—S

r

K

—

/5r;
_/

T

-z

/
S

-
S

—
-—

--—
5--

5

Z-—-

--:-—/://J/



—A
-

NE.
O

PJ
C

ity
o

f
N

e
w

p
o
rt

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

D
e
p

a
rtm

e
n

t
169

SW
C

onet
H

ighw
ay

P
hone:1

.5
4
1
.5

7
4
0
6
2
9

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

N
ew

port,
O

R
9

7
3

6
5

F
e:1

.5
4
1
.5

7
4
.0

6
4
4

,
d
h
.d

b
..n

P
,D

o
.d

S
,.f

lw
,,,flb

o
rle

a
.I..rO

flO
,,0

0
.w

S
W

V
V

O
9

P
W

P
w

IS
II

H
olbrook

P
arcels

Im
age

T
aken

July
2013

4-Inch,
4-band

D
igital

O
rth

o
p

h
n

to
s

flu
o
id

S
m

ith
&

A
enociates.

Inc.
P

o
rtlan

d
.

O
R

-1
-;

I

a

?

‘
.
a
.
r
’
‘

‘
0

-—
a
,

T
P

!

0
60

120
240



‘_ilcy ‘.11 INVVFJLJl C

Land Use Application EXHIBIT 4
PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE. CO?1fPLRTE ALL BOXES. USE ADDITIONAL PAPI

Applicant Name(s): Property Owner Name(s): If oth

t-hfrl /_/ot1vcfr
Applicant Mailing Address: Property Owner Mailing Address: If other than applicant

4c2? - lCëvltC L’ep
/‘ I 97

Applicant Telephone No.: -/2,
, Property Owner Telephone No.: If other than applicant

E-mail: I..Ckfl E-mail:
Authorized Representative(s): Person authorized to submit and act on this application on applicants behalf

Authorized Representative Mailing Address:

Authorized Representative Telephone No.: E-Mail:

Project Information
Property Location: Strept name if addreps # not assignqd

0 Al .3

Tax Assessors Map No.: / Y // ‘2C9 A C ITax Lot(s): 0 7
Zone Designation:

, Legal Description: Add additional sheets if necessary

Comp Plan Designation:

Brief Description of Land Use Request(s):
- D

-Lp&. / 7j / y’ N1,i it Jtl(ci’i /P,pJI Cc”-1 1%/C

2T 2ô 1’5

Examples:
1. Move north Property line 5 feet south, or
2. Variance of 2 feet from the required 15-foot front yard setback

Existing Structures: If any flô n
Topography and Vegetation:

APPLICATION TYPE (please check all that apply)

El Annexation El Interpretation El UGB Amendment
Appeal El Minor Replat El Vacation

El Comp Plan/Map Amendment El Partition El Variance/Adjustment

El Conditional Use Permit El Planned Development El PC
El PC El Property Line Adjustment El StaffEl Staff El Shoreland Impact El Zone Ord/Map AmendmentEl Design Review

El El Subdivision El Other________________Geologic Permit
El Temporary Use Permit

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No. Assigned: —- 1’Rl f
Date Received: 1 7— I Fee Amount: U .) Date Accepted as Complete:

Received By: Receipt No.: , O. I Accepted By:

(SEE REVERSE SIDE)
Community Development & Planning Department. 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365 Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Director

1/10



Oct. 8, 2015

Jon Holbrook

405 SE Scenic Loop

Newport OR, 97365

Atten; Planning Department of City of Newport

RE; Request for Appeal of denial of Minor Partition #3-PAR-is of tax lot 607 of Lincoln County
Assessors tax map no. 10-11-20-BC, dated Sept. 24, 2015

Appeal by Jonathan Holbrook, owner of property and applicant for minor partition

The Appellant wishes the appeal to be heard de novo.

Below is an item by item response to the individual criteria by item number that deemed the
partition ineligible. Only the criteria that deemed the partition denied are addressed. All other
criteria stand as approved.

Item B ii.

The Community Development Director (referred to from here on as the Planning
Director), Derrick Tokos’s description of the proposed properties is completely false. He states
“The applicant’s tentative plan illustrates that both proposed parcels possess at least 25 feet of
frontage along a private easement road (i.e. a private way) that extends north from US 101
along the east boundary of the properties, parallel to the highway. This private way currently
serves as the primary vehicular access to eight parcels, including the subject property, and is
therefore by definition a street (as opposed to a driveway).” I am surprised at this
determination by our senior planner as I have discussed my project with him in depth and he is
perfectly aware that I have direct Highway 101 access and frontage to this parcel. The proposed
frontage directly on Hwy 101 is as follows, parcel 1 has 90’ frontage and parcel 2 has 80’
frontage. I clearly show this on my site plan submittal. The access is permitted and approved by
ODOT and the City of Newport. Both proposed properties will have direct frontage on highway
101 exceeding the 25’ minimum. As such the inference that my property’s front and also
proposed Parcel 2’s access is “along a private easement road” is false. My partition does then
meet the requirement of NMC 13.05.030 (B).

In previous discussions the Planning Director was concerned about increased traffic. I
propose that Parcel 2 retains direct highway access and parcel one’s driveway will be
immediately adjacent to the highway access a short distance down the 35’ easement with an
existing 22’ wide gravel road (see Site Plan attachment 1). The private easement road to parcel
1 is existing, legal, and City and ODOT approved, and there will be no change to either the
driveway or the private easement road. If I didn’t partition this parcel I would still be accessing
it from the same driveway location, meaning, if my partition is granted, there will be no net



increase to traffic on the private easement road. Parcel two will continue to access directly to
highway 101. The Hwy 101 access and the private easement road are both reviewed and
approved by the City of Newport, the City of Newport Fire Department, and ODOT.

Item E I. The Planning Director failed to notify me of an incomplete application as required per
Section 13.05.095 A. “After an application for minor replat or partition is deemed complete, the
community development director shall send notice to persons within 100 feet of the subject
property and if there are existing public easements, affected utilities, that the tentative plan has
been filed.” I was not informed of an incomplete application until I received the Letter of Denial.
See attachments 2,3, and 4 from the utility companies.

Item E ii. The Planning Director again failed to notify me of an incomplete application as
required per code. See note on Item E i. and see attached letter from City of Newport Public
Works. The Municipal Development Code requires disclosure of any Street improvements
needed outside the development due to increased traffic flow. Outside my partition is direct
access to Hwy 101 and ODOT made no recommendations for improvements needed, during the
comment period, which means no changes are required outside the development.

Item E iii.

I believe the Planning Director is misinterpreting the Criteria in this instance. The
Municipal Code clearly reads “Proposed streets within the partition comply with the standards
under Section 13.05.015, including any allowed modification, or a variance has been obtained”.
The definition of proposed is “to form or put forward a plan or intention”. This interprets to
mean that any planned (proposed) new streets or modifications to existing streets need to
meet current standards. I am not “proposing” any streets or “modifications to streets”. The
Planning Director has verbally confirmed to me that the existing road and access easement is
grandlathered in and is the legal access to all the properties it services. I am strictly just trying
to partition a piece of property that is accessed directly from Hwy 101 and from a legal private
easement road approved by the City. This Criteria clearly is referencing a situation where if
someone wants to a build a new roadway or modify an existing roadway, they will need to
follow the standards of Section 13.05.015. This is not referencing situations like mine where I
am not proposing any changes to the existing approved roadway.

In addition to this there are also several exceptions to the requirement that city grade streets,
per NMC Chapter 14.44 Transportation Standards, be installed that would accommodate my
situation.

Section 14.44.050 of the City of Newport Municipal Code Chapter 14.44
“Transportation Standards” specifically allows exceptions to the requirement to install or
improve the adjacent roadways, as follows;



“B. Guarantee. The city may accept a future improvement guarantee in the form of a
surety bond, letter of credit or non-remonstrance agreement, in lieu of street improvements, if
it determines that one or more of the following conditions exist.”

2. “Due to the developed condition of adjacent properties it is unlikely that street
improvements would be extended in the foreseeable future and the improvement
associated with the project under review does not, by itself, provide increased street
safety or capacity, or improved pedestrian circulation.”

The property to the south is completely undeveloped. I am attaching an email
correspondence from the Planning Director to the effect that the property is in
limbo and there are no plans for the property to be improved in the foreseeable
future (see attachment 5). The property to the North is owned by me and I do not
plan any street improvements, other than what has already been approved and
built, in the foreseeable future. In Item E iii., the Planning Director quotes the
criteria that “proposed streets within the partition comply with the standards under
section 13.05.015, including any allowed modification, or a variance has been
obtained.” What the Planning Director is asking here is to install a city grade street
with sidewalks along an approximately 170’ stretch that would continue to a 15’
gravel road without sidewalks on the North and then dead end at the south into the
woods with no change to the highway access. I believe this does not improve the
street safety or capacity or improve pedestrian circulation in such a little traveled
area without so much as tying into any city grade road on either end or improving
the access to Hwy 101. As such, I believe that my partition meets this exception.

4. “The improvement is associated with an approved land partition or minor replat and
the proposed land partition does not create any new streets.”

In this situation, taking into consideration the Planning Directors
misrepresentation of the facts on the ground, misinterpretation of the criteria, and
the Municipal Code exceptions cited, the partition meets all the criteria for approval,
and as such should have been approved. I am not creating any new streets as the
existing Hwy 101 access and the existing private easement road is totally adequate
for the partition. As such, I believe I my partition meets this exception.

I have agreed to sign a non-remonstrance agreement, in lieu of street
improvements, and I believe my partition meets the two exceptions cited above
(one more exception than is actually required) thus my partition should be allowed
and I should not be required to upgrade the street.

“D. Creation of Access Easements. The city may approve an access easement when
the easement is necessary to provide viable access to a developable lot or parcel and
there is not sufficient room for the public right-of-way due to topography, lot
configuration, or placement of existing buildings. Access easements shall be created
and maintained in accordance with the Uniform Fire Code”



This is the exact situation I am in with my development. There are multiple
gullies with streams throughout the property limiting the access road to a very
specific and minimal area. In addition, Because of the topography there are very
limited buildable sites. I have very carefully placed the private easement road to
allow for as many buildable sites as possible. Any increase in roadway width would
make some of these properties nearly unbuildable. This was the original premise on
why the private easement road was designed and permitted this way, the only other
option being to install driveways off highway 101 to each property. In the early
planning stages with ODOT and the City of Newport, we decided it would be best if
we had only one access road to the grouping of properties. This was done from a
safety perspective to limit highway access in a 55 MPH zone. I voluntarily did this as)
could have just as easily, and possibly for less money, put in individual driveways to
each lot. ODOT is actually required to allow driveways to landlocked properties.
With the attitude of the new city administration, I am now starting to regret having
cooperated so completely with the previous administration and the State.
Everything was approved by the city and fire department and the conditions on the
ground have not changed. As such I should be allowed to do further partitioning and
not be required to go back and put in city streets as this exception was previously,
and is still at this time, perfectly suited to my situation.

Item E iv. Once again, the Criteria for a minor partition only requires road upgrades when either
new “proposed roads” are constructed or existing roads are modified. In my case neither of which
is happening. The City’s issue with the existing private easement road not being adequate to
serve additional parcels is completely unfounded as per my explanation in my response to Item
B ii. There is no net increase in traffic with my Partition as Parcel two will not be using the access
easement toad. In addition, in my response to Item E iii., it is clear I qualify for several exceptions
to the requirement for road upgrades. The Planning Director also, has made it clear to me that
the existing private easement road is grandfathered in as a legal access.

Item F. The Planning Director once again failed to inform me of an incomplete application as
required by the Municipal Code. See attached letter from Newport Public Works.

Another point, the property is a nonconforming lot per NMC13.05.030(F) in that it
exceeds the maximum lot size. As we all know, there is a very limited amount of developable
property available in Newport. My partition would bring the property into conformance, add one
more lot to the market, and add to the property tax base at no expense to the city.

In closing, Newport Municipal Code Section 13.05.095 B. states “If the tentative plan
complies with the criteria, the plan shall be approved. Conditions of approval, including
requirements to provide public improvements necessary to allow development, may be imposed.
If the tentative plan does not comply with the criteria or cannot be made to comply through
reasonable conditions of approval, the plan shall be denied and the applicant shall be notified in
writing why the tentative plan was denied and what items need to be corrected before the



tentative plan can be approved”. I believe that I have demonstrated that I meet the Criteria and,
I have also laid out several options for reasonable conditions of approval that would allow my
partition to be approved. I have done everything by the book, spent 100’s of thousands of dollars
on improvements of infrastructure, water, sewer, utilities, roadways, all with city approval and
with city knowledge that I would be further partitioning the properties. As proof of this I worked
with the City on locating sewer and water stubouts to accommodate this and several other
partitions yet to be done (one of which I was denied earlier this year for similar criteria he used
to deny this partition). To come at me now with these totally extreme requirements, when it is
clear there are several exceptions to the current code that allows further partitioning without
the road improvements, is completely unreasonable. It is not only unreasonable but it is
economically unfeasible. The cost of doing what the Planning Director asks would cost more than
the resultant properties would be worth. He likes to cite the Wilder development as something I
could model this after. Everybody knows the Wilder development was funded by a
multimillionaire family with no worry about ever making a profit. I am personally heavily in debt
to fund this project and have been hanging on by the skin of my teeth, paying my property taxes
on time for the last 8 years waiting for the market to come back so that I can at least break even
and hopefully make a small amount of money. The implication that every developer is a
millionaire and can just fund money losing projects is repulsive, especially after seeing so many
of my contractor friends go bankrupt or out of business in the last eight years. Why does the city
have to put up every possible barrier to do something as insignificant as divide a piece of property
into two lots? I’m a third generation Newport local, born and raised here, and when a relatively
recent arrival like the Planning Director, who obviously has no idea how hard it is to make it in
Newport, tells me “The City adopted new land division regulations” and then implies your ten
years’ worth of planning, obtaining city and state approvals, and countless hours of hard work
means little now, it’s incredibly discouraging. He then puts up every possible barrier, not
informing me of an incomplete application as required by code and not even considering to work
with me on all the possible exceptions we could have used to approve the partition. On top of
that, considering his intimate familiarity with the area, it is my opinion he purposely
misrepresented the facts concerning the access and frontage in order to help justify the denial
he wanted. I have no idea of his motivation for this, you will have to ask him. I really have to
wonder how many other people with limited finances have been shortchanged by this “no can
do” attitude.

Sincerely

Jon Holbrook



SF

t/
5
1
%

1

— ç
,

•
-

T
;

-
-
.
-
.

..
j
.

‘
‘

1—
.c’

sS
ç
:
’

-
‘

/

1
%

A
V

L
.
R

g

‘
-
a
c
7

—
—

“l
A
c
—

,



OctobeT8,2015 4j’ CefltUryLiflkTM

Attn: Ion Holbrook
405 SE Scenic LP
Newport, OR 97365
541-265-9366

RE Minor Laud PartItion 110$, Ri 1W Sec 20, Parcel 1, IL 607,
60 NW 70th ST, City ofNewport Lincoln County, Oregon

Mr. Holbrook:

This information is provided in responseto ycmr request regrdlng telephone service for
the property described as 110$, R1IW Sec 20, Parcel 1, IL 607, 60 NW 70th SI, City of
Newport, Lincoln County,. Oregon.

The address at issue is in CenturyLink service territory. Newport is the serving
exchange.

The developer and subsequent property owners are subject to the terms and conditions
contained in CenturyLink’s ified Price List for Exchange and Network Services, Section
.59, entitled “Construction of Outside Piaiit Facilities”. It shall be in effect at the tinie
service is billed.

Sincerely,

Travis Vaughn
Engineer II
CentuiyLink
740 State SI, 4” fIR
Salem OR, 97301
503-365-5555

740 State St. RM 407
Salem, OR 97307
Fax: 503.399.4428
www.centurylink.com



Charter
o H H U H C 0 H

October 08, 2015

Dear John Holbrook

I am responding to your request for Charter Communications to be able to service the address
of 60 NW 70Th St in Newport. Charter Communications can adequately service this lot with the
placement of conduit to an existing pedestal at the NW corner of NW 70th at the top of the
driveway to your lot. If the conduits ace not in a useable state the developer will be asked to
repair or replace the conduits so Charter Communications can pull service lines through.

Justin Hall Construction Coordinator
Charter Communications
2800 SE HWY 101 Lincoln City, OR 97367

ATr4C1/jiw7 ‘



Serving Portions of Coos, Douglas, Lane, and Lincoln counties on Oregons Central Coast

CENTRAL LINCGLN
A COMMUNITY-OWNED ELECTRIC UTILITY

2129 N. Coast Hwy • P.O. Box 1126 • Newport, Oregon 97365-0090 • 541-265-3211 • clpud.org

September 28, 2015

REF: 10-1 1-20-BC 607

Mr. Holbrook,

We have existing electrical facilities near this lot that we can serve it from.

Sincerely,

Jake Pettis

Central Lincoln
Senior Distribution Engineer Tech
541-574-3639



C

CI—

c-i-i
wo

z

In

C)

5-9-is

111t44lfUAW4n7
/‘--

1
tD/

1

UI-

0

ci)

o

0-



. U .nnu, I. LI V . ..,Ui Il/ UI! I La! 1.1!! v i r I iii ctvicagc LIII Lsc—I 1—US

Print Close

RE: NW 70th Street

From: Derrick Tokos (D.TokosNewportOregon.gov)
Sent: Tue 4/28/15 6:35 PM
To: ‘Jon’ (custhome@hotmail.com)
Cc: Spencer Nebel (S.NebelNewportOregon.gov); Tim Gross (EGrossNewportOregon.gov);

wbelmont@co.lincoln.or.us (wbelmont@co.lincoln.or. us); Steven Rich
(S .RichNewportOregon.gov)

Hi Jon,

I’d like to take a moment to respond to this email and your previous request that the City
legalize NW 70th Street as a public roadway. To the best of our knowledge, the strip of land
identified as NW 70th Street was created in 1967 by owners Alvin and Doris Roberts as a
private road that provided access to neighboring properties (Book 277, Page 474). At some
point Alvin and Doris Roberts, or their successor’s, stopped paying taxes on the property and
Lincoln County picked it up via tax foreclosure in 1994 (Book 288, Page 1924). The County
conveyed the property to the City in 2008 (Instrument #200809740) and County Board Order
#2-08-50 indicated that the transfer was being done because the City of Newport wanted to
obtain a deed to the property for possible dedication as a city street.

ORS 93.808 states that an instrument conveying title or interest to the State of Oregon or to a
county, city or other political subdivision in this state may not be recorded unless the
instrument carries an indication of approval of the conveyance by this state or the political
subdivision accepting title or interest. The 2008 Quit Claim deed conveying title to the property
from the County to the City does not include an approval clause indicating that the City
accepted title to the property. Peggy Hawker, City Recorder, researched City Council minutes
back to June of 2000 and found no reference to NW 70th Street and the desire for a deed to
the property for a possible dedication as a city street. We have also been unable to locate any
staff correspondence on the issue. That is why we have concerns about the viability of the
conveyance.

Be that as it may, let’s assume for discussion purposes that the City owns the property. What
we then have is a strip of land that the City possesses fee title to, over which there are
easements granting certain landowners’ rights of access to their parcels. The property is not a
public road and the City is not responsible for maintaining it as such. Those persons with road
easement rights presumably have a right to maintain the road so that they can continue to
exercise those rights. Similarly utilities, including Central Lincoln and NW Natural, who

lof3 4tFA/rIoI5l:O3PM



cci.ii..vi lLo.IIIaIl.llvc.L.u111/oI/ itidi t.iirvi.i rtiiictviessages tiiiia—en—us

obtained easements from the County when they owned the property, have a right to access
and maintain the utilities they have placed on the property.

We discussed the possibility of the City legalizing NW 70th Street as a public road pursuant to
ORS 223.935 to 223.950. That would include the fee owned strip of land and the portion of the
‘as traveled” roadway that cuts across the southwest corner of your properties (Parcels 1 and 2,
Partition Plat 2010-4). The City may also be able to dedicate the fee owned piece of NW 70th
as a public road through an alternative process thus limiting the legalization to the portion that
extends outside of the city’s ownership.

In either case, we would not recommend that the City Council establish NW 70th Street as a
public road and accept maintenance responsibility over it without a commitment from the
property owners to improve the road to a standard that the City would accept. This could be
accomplished through the formation of a local improvement district. The process can be
initiated by petition of at least half of the abutting property owners. The Public Works
Department would then prepare a preliminary engineering report outlining the probable cost
of the project and method of assessing the cost to the benefiting properties. There would then
be a hearings process where affected owner’s could testify in favor or opposition to the
formation of a district.

Please let me know if you are interested in establishing a local improvement district and I’ll
follow-up with the form(s) you’ll need to get the petition started.

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP
Community Development Director
City of Newport
169 SW Coast Highway
Newport, OR 97365
ph: 541.574.0626
fax: 541.574.0644
d.tokos@ newportoregon.gov

From: Jon [mailto:custhome@hotmail.comJ
Sent: Thursday, April 16, 2015 10:37 AM
To: Derrick Tokos
Cc: spencernebel@newportoregon.gov
Subject: NW 70th Street

Hi Derrick,

2of3 10/6/2015 1:03 PM



//
/

/
c
9

6
0



i
l
\

J

7
-i1

rifl
-
—

a

I
S

i,



cover administrative costs. Any shortfall will be paid
from the general fund.

c. Notwithstanding the above, a developer may
guarantee installation of required sidewalks in an
Improvement Agreement as provided in Section
13.05.090(C).

(73.05. 040(A)(5) was amended by Ordinance No. 2045, adopted on
November5, 2072; effecth’e December 5, 2072.)

B. All public improvements shall be designed and built to
standards adopted by the city. Until such time as a formal set
of public works standards is adopted, public works shall be
built to standards in any existing published set of standards
designated by the city engineer for the type of improvement.
The city engineer may approve designs that differ from the
applicable standard if the city engineer determines that the
desigli is adequate.

C. Public improvements are subject to inspection and
acceptance by the city. The city may condition building or
occupancy within the land division on completion and
acceptance of required public improvements.

13.05.045 Adequacy of Public Facilities and Utilities (Electric
and Phone)

A. Tentative plans for land divisions shalt be approved only if
public facilities and utilities (electric and phone) can be
provided to adequately service the land division as
demonstrated by a written letter from the public facility
provider or utility provider stating the requirements for the
provision of public facilities or utilities (electric and phone) to
the proposed land division:

B. For public facilities of sewer, water, storm water, and streets,
the letter must identify the:

1. Water main sizes and locations, and pumps needed, if
any, to serve the tand division.— &‘<-L6,C Zi- . e

Th-’ ‘- -7v, r % l
2. Sewer mains sizes and locations, and pumping facilities

needed, if any, to serve the lend division. e ‘-1
appu ‘d eet e ,b€. / ,

3. Storm drainage facilities needed, if any, to handle any
increased flow or concentration of surface drainage from
the land division, or detention or retention facilities that

e.
All ,ul4lCfr f’- ?kl,



could be used to eliminate need for additional conveyance
capacity, without increasing erosion or flooding.

4. Street improvements outside of the proposed
development that may be needed to adequately handle
traffic generated frçm the proposed development. Ptpc y 1?-’ 4,

)t1 i/ 19/ v’>7’ 1/cJ ‘-I ?cuie-
13.05.050 Underground Utilities and Service Facilities . ,/Cf1 /fr7

1L0 7L, e caiei76 t vcef h4’ ‘11 ,41 7IZ2’A. Undergroundinq. All utility lines within the boundary of the
proposed land divisions, including, but not limited to, those
required for electric, telephone, lighting, and cable television L,_1 hi!services and related facilities shall be placed underground,

>‘-‘except surface-mounted transformers, surface-mounted i a ±-‘yev cci€connection boxes and meter cabinets which may be placed
Dabove ground, temporary utility service facilities during ‘‘‘‘

construction, high capacity electric and communication
feeder lines, and utility transmission lines operating at 50,000
volts or above. The subdivider shall make all necessary
arrangements with the serving utility to provide the
underground service.

B. Non-City-Owned Utilities. As part of the application for
tentative land division approval, the applicant shall submit a
copy of the preliminary plat to all non-city-owned utilities that
will serve the proposed subdivision. The subdivider shall
secure from the non-city-owned utilities, including but not
limited to electrical, telephone, cable television, and natural
gas utilities, a written statement that will set forth their
extension policy to serve the proposed land division with
underground facilities. The written statements from each
utility shall be submitted to the city prior to the final approval
of the plat for recording.

13.05.055 Street Lights

Street lights are required in all land divisions where a street is
proposed. The city may adopt street tight standards. In the
absence of adopted standards, streetlights shall be place in new
land divisions to assure adequate lighting of streets and
sidewalks within and adjacent to the land division.

13.05.060 Street Signs

Street name signs, traffic control signs and parking control signs
shall be furnished and installed by the city.



MEMO
Date: October 12, 2015

To: Derrick Tokos, City Planner

From: Olaf Sweetman, Assistant City Engineer

Re: Adequacy of City facilities for 60 NW 70th St (10-11-20-BC-00607)

This memo is in response to the requirements of Section 13.05.045 requiring confirmation of
public services for the re-platting of property within the City limits.

1. Water Services: City water is provided by a 6” PVC main located within the property.
This line provide sufficient water capacity and pressure for domestic and fire needs.

2. Sanitary Sewer Services: City sanitary sewer service is provided by 8” PVC mains and the
NW 70th St Pump Station, located west of the property. These facilities are sufficient to
meet the capacity needs of the property. Note that the downstream Agate Beach
system has capacity issues, however no moratorium on new development has been
imposed and the on-going Agate Beach Wastewater Collection Systems Improvements
Project will address these capacity issues.

3. Storm Sewer: There is no City storm sewer adjacent to the property. Existing runoff
from the property flows through a private culvert to a nearby ravine. Since the property
is not proposing to add any additional impervious surface, the re-platting of the
property should not cause any additional storm runoff.

4. Street accessibility, availability, capacity and condition: The property is accessed directly
from US-lOl via private driveway. There are no adjacent City streets.

Page lof 1



EXHIBIT 5

BEFORE THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
(PLANNING) DIRECTOR OF THE CITY OF
NEWPORT, COUNTY Of LINCOLN,
STATE OF OREGON

IN THE MATTER Of PLANNING FILE )
NO. 3-PAR-iS, APPLICATION FOR THE )
TENTATIVE PLAN FOR A PROPOSED ) FINAL
PARTITION AS SUBMITTED BY JONATHAN ) ORDER
B. HOLBROOK, PROPERTY OWNER )

ORDER DENYING A REQUEST per Chapter 13.05 ofthe Newport Municipal Code (NMC) for approval
to partition property identified as Tax Lot 607 of Lincoln County Assessor’s Tax Map 10-11-20-BC (Parcel
I Partition Plat 2010-04) into two parcels. The resulting Parcel 1 is approximately 10,913 square feet in
size, and Parcel 2 is 9,200 square feet in size. The subject property is located in an R-l/”Low Density
Single-family Residential” zoning district.

WHEREAS:

1.) The City ofNewport Community Development (Planning) Director has duly accepted the application
filed consistent with the Newport Municipal Code (NMC); and

2.) The Community Development (Planning) Director has duly reviewed the request and has given
proper and timely notice to affected property owners; and

3.) The Community Development (Planning) Director allowed evidence and recommendations to be
submitted from interested persons, Community Development (Planning) Department staff, other
City departments, state agencies, and/or local utilities; and

4.) At the conclusion of said review, after consideration, the Newport Community Development
(Planning) Director denied the request for a partition.

THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED by the City of Newport Community Development (Planning)
Director that the attached findings of fact, Exhibit “A,” support the denial of the request to partition the
above referenced property into two parcels.

BASED UPON THE ABOVE, the Newport Community Development (Planning) Director determines that
the request for the tentative plan for a partition does not comply with applicable provisions of the City of
Newport Municipal Code.

FINAL ORDER: Partition No. 3-PAR-I5-ionathan Holbrook Page I of 2



Dated this 24th day of September, 2015.

Derrick I. Tokos, AICP
Community Development (Planning) Director

Attest:

WandaHaey
Executive Assistant

FINAL ORDER Partition No. 3-PAR-15—Jonathan Holbrook. Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT “A”

Case File No. 3-PAR-15

FINDINGS Of FACT

1. The request submitted by the applicant and property owner, Jonathan B. Holbrook, is
for consideration of a partition application per Chapter 13.05 of the Newport Municipal
Code (NMC) to divide property identified as Tax Lot 607 of Lincoln County Assessor’s
Tax Map 10-1 1-20-BC (Parcel 1 Partition Plat 20 10-04) into two separate parcels.

2. The application materials for the proposed partition were received by mail on July 23,
2015. A copy of the application materials are in file No. 2-PAR-15 and are incorporated
by reference into these findings.

3. The subject property is identified as Tax lot 607 of the Lincoln County Assessor’s Tax
Map 10-1 1-20-BC (Parcel 1 Partition Plat 20 10-04) and is located immediately north of
the intersection of NW 70thi Street and Highway 101. The Comprehensive Plan
designation for the property is Low Density Residential, and the zoning designation is R
1/”Low Density Single-family Residential.”

4. The applicant’s tentative partition map indicates that the subject property is
approximately 20,113 square feet (0.46 acre) in size. Proposed Parcel 1 would contain
roughly 10,913 square feet (0.25 acre) of land; and proposed Parcel 2 would contain
roughly 9,200 square feet (021 acre) of land. Both parcels are vacant.

5. Notices of the proposed action were sent on July 24, 2015, to affected property owners
within 100 feet of the subject property, affected public agencies and utilities within
Lincoln County, and affected City departments. The notice contained the criteria by
which the request for the tentative plan for the proposed partition is to be assessed.
Affected parties were given until August 7, 2015, in which to make comment on the
application.

6. By the close of the comment period, no comments were received by the Community
Development Department.

7. NMC Section 13.05.095(A) outlines the criteria for the review of a tentative plan for a
partition. Those criteria are:

(a) The tentative plan complies with the definition of a partition.
(b) All lots or parcels within the tentative plan meet the requirements of NMC

Section 13.05.030. Alternatively, if the original lots or parcels were
nonconforming, the resultant lots or parcels may be allowed without a
variance if they are less nonconforming.

(c) Approval of the tentative plan does not interfere with the provision of key
public facilities.

(d) The applicant has agreed to sign consent to participate in sewer, water, or
street local improvement districts that the subject lots or parcels would be
part of once those districts are formed. The consent shall be a separate

Exhibit .A’ — Findings of Fact: Partition No. 3-PAR-15—Jonathan Holbrook. Page 1 of6



document recorded upon the lots or parcels subject to the partition. The
document shall be recorded prior to final plat approval.

(e) Public facilities serving the partition are adequate under Section
13.05.045. Proposed streets within the partition comply with the standards
under Section 13.05.015, including any allowed modification, or a
variance has been obtained.

(f) All required public improvements will be provided.
(g) Any required submitted geological hazard report concludes that the

property can be developed in the manner proposed, in accordance with any
recommendations contained in the report.

CONCLUSIONS

1. With regard to the criteria established in Newport’s Municipal Code (NMC) Section
13.05 .095(A) for approving a tentative plan for a partition, the following conclusions can
be drawn:

A. Criterion # 1. The tentative plan complies with the definition ofa partition.

Pursuant to Section 13.05.005(D) (“Definitions”) of the Newport Municipal
Code (NMC), a partition is the division of land into not more than three
parcels in a calendar year.

The property identified as Tax Lot 607 was created by a partition plat
approved by the City of Newport and recorded in 2010 as Parcel I Partition
PlatNo. 2010-04.

The applicant notes that the tentative plan complies with the definition of a
partition; one property being divided into two.

The tentative plan complies with the definition of a partition.

B. Criterion # 2. All lots or parcels within the tentative plan meet the
requirements ofNMC Section 13.05.030. Alternatively, f the original lots or
parcels were nonconforming, the resultant lots or parcels may be allowed
without a variance tjthey are less nonconjörming.

NMC 13.05.030 sets out dimension and access requirements for new parcels,
and has been addressed by the applicant as follows:

1. NMC 13.05.030(A) requires that the minimum area and width of parcels
comply with the applicable lot size provisions of the Zoning Ordinance.
The minimum lot size requirement for the R- I zone is 7,500 square feet;
and the proposed partition will result in two parcels. Parcel I is 10,913
square feet in size, and Parcel 2 is 9,200 square feet. Both parcels meet
the minimum lot size standards in the district.

Exhibit “A” — Findings of Fact: Partition No. 3-PAR-I 5—Jonathan Ho’brook. Page 2 of6



ii. NMC 13.05.030(3) requires that each parcel possess at least 25 feet of
street frontage along a street other than an alley. The term “street” is
defined by NMC 13.05.005, as follows:

“Street. A public or private way other than a driveway that is created
to provide ingress or egress for persons to one or more lots, parcels,
areas, or tracts of land. For the purposes of this section, a “driveway”
is a private way that begins at a public right-of-way that is proposed
to serve not more than four individual lots/parcels cumulative as the
primary vehicular access to those individual lots/parcels.”

The applicant’s tentative plan illustrates that both proposed parcels
possess at least 25 feet of frontage along a private easement road (i.e. a
private way) that extends north from US 101 along the east boundary of
the properties, parallel to the highway. This private way currently serves
as the primary vehicular access to eight parcels, including the subject
property, and is therefore by definition a street (as opposed to a driveway).

iii. NMC 13.05.030(C) prohibits the creation of through lots (i.e. lots with
parallel street frontage along the front and rear property lines). The
tentative partition map shows that no through lots are being created.

iv. NMC 13.05.030(D) requires the side lot lines of parcels run at right angles
to the street upon which they face or as close to a right angle as is
practical. The tentative partition map shows that this criterion has been
met for both parcels.

v. NMC 13.05.030(E) requires that any special setbacks lines proposed by
the applicant or recommended in a geologic report be depicted on the
tentative partition map. No special setback lines exist other than easement
access lines as shown on the tentative plan.

vi. NMC 13.05.030(F) specifies a maximum parcel size of 175% of the
required minimum lot size for the zone district, unless topography or other
conditions restrict further development potential or the layout of the land
division provides for the extension of streets that will permit subsequent
division and development of the property at densities appropriate to the
zoning designation. The tentative partition map shows that the proposed
lots do not contain more than 13,125 square feet of land area, which is
175% of the required minimum lot size. This standard is satisfied.

vii. NMC 13.05.030(G) states that no lot or parcel shall be created with more
than 50% of its land area containing wetlands or lands where the city
restricts development to protect significant natural resources, unless the lot
or parcel is specifically designated as open space. City inventories do not
identify any wetlands on the property nor are there any city protected
natural resources on either of the proposed parcels.

Exhibit ‘A — findings of FacL Partition No. 3-PAR-I5-Jonathan Koibrook. Page 3 of6



viii. NMC 13.05.030(H) requires that an applicant who is creating
undeveloped parcels within a geologic hazards area have an engineering
geologist establish a minimum 1,000 square foot building footprint on
each proposed parcel as a “buildable” area. The standard further
prohibits new public infrastructure needed to serve the new parcel or
parcels from being placed within active or high hazard zones or active
landslide areas. Neither of the proposed parcels is within a city defined
geologic hazards area.

C. Criterion # 3. Approval of the tentative plan does not interfrre with the
provision ofkey public facilities.

i. Key public facilities in the vicinity of the proposed partition include water
and sewer main lines. Such lines appear to be within existing easements
of record and the proposed tentative partition plan shows that existing
easements will not be altered.

ii. Considering the above, this partition does not appear to interfere with the
provision of key public facilities.

D. Criterion # 4. The applicant has agreed to sign consent to participate in
sewer, water, or street local improvement districts that the subject lots or parcels
would be part ofonce those districts are formed. The consent shall be a separate
document recorded upon the lots or parcels subject to the partition. The
document shall be recorded prior to final plat approval.

A non-remonstrance agreement of this nature is needed when properties
adjoin underdeveloped streets and the cost of improving the street and related
services is disproportionate to the level of impact attributed to the proposed
land division. The applicant has agreed to sign consent to any local
improvement districts.

E. Criterion # 5. Public facilities serving the partition are adequate ttnder NMC
Section 13.05.015. Proposed streets within the partition comply with the
standards under Section 13.05.015, including any allowed modification, or a
variance has been obtained.

1. NMC 13.05.045 sets out requirements for ensuring public facilities and
utilities (electric and phone) are adequate to serve the partition parcels.
With respect to electric and phone service, letters must be submitted from
each service provider establishing that service is adequate, including any
requirements they may have in order to provide service to the proposed
parcels. The required letters were not included with the application;
therefore, there is no evidence to demonstrate that the proposed parcels
will have adequate electric and phone service.

Exhibit ‘A’ — Findings offact: Partition No. 3PAR-15—Jonathan Floibrook. Page 4 of6



ii. For public facilities involving sewer, water, storm drainage, and streets a
letter must be provided identifying water main sizes, locations and pumps
needed (if any) to serve the proposed land division; sewer main sizes,
locations and pumping facilities needed (if any) to serve the proposed land
division; storm drainage facilities needed, if any, to handle any increased
flow or concentration of surface drainage from the land division, or
detention or retention facilities that could be used to eliminate the need for
additional conveyance capacity, without increasing erosion or flooding;
and street improvements outside of the proposed development that may be
needed to adequately handle traffic generated from the proposed
development. Such letters are obtained from the City of Newport Public
Works Department. The application does not include a letter of this
nature.

iii. The second part of the approval criterion states that “Proposed streets
within the partition comply with the standards under Section 13.05.015,
including any allowed modification, or a variance has been obtained.”
Proposed street access for the two new parcels is a 15-foot wide gravel
road that has been constructed within a 36-foot wide private access
easement. The road already serves more than four parcels therefore it is
by definition a street that must meet the provisions of Section 13.05.015.
Those provisions require the right-of-way (easement) be 50-feet in width
and that the travelled roadway be at least 36-feet in width (NMC
13.05.015(B)). There are other standards that trigger as well, such as the
provision of sidewalks (NMC 13.05.01 5(H)), and a restriction that a dead-
end roadway such as this not exceed 400-feet (NMC 13.05.015(I)) . The
proposed tentative partition map does not show street access for the new
lots that is in conformance with these requirements nor is there any other
information in the application to indicate that such a street will be
constructed.

iv. The application materials indicate that the public utilities and access road
have been previously approved and installed per City of Newport
requirements. This is true with regards to existing parcels. It is not the
case for the proposed land division. The City adopted new land division
regulations since the existing parcels were created. Staff has met with the
applicant to explain that the gravel road, as constructed, is not adequate to
serve additional parcels. The applicant may elect to file an application for
a planned development to seek approval for a street cross-section that is
narrower than what is prescribed in the subdivision ordinance. There is a
precedence for this, such as the Wilder Planned Development in South
Beach. If the applicant were to file for a planned development it is likely
that the minimum roadway width that the Newport Public Works
Department would support is 24-feet given the size of the vehicles they
use to maintain and upgrade the water, sewer, and storm drainage
infrastructure serving the abutting lots.

Exhibit A’ —Findings of Fact: Partition No. 3-PAR-15-Jonathan Holbrook. Page 5 of6



v. Considering the above, this standard has not been satisfied.

F. Criterion # 6. All requiredpublic improvements will be provided.

1. The street is private, so public improvements are limited to water, sewer,
and storm drainage systems. Water mains are in place to serve the
proposed parcels. Sewer service exists to the west and would have to be
extended to the proposed parcels. It is not clear how the applicant intends
to extend sewer service and whether or not the existing easements are
adequate for this purpose. The application does not address how storm
drainage will be handled on the parceLs.

ii. Considering the above, this standard has not been satisfied.

G. Criterion # 7. Any required submitted geological hazard report conclttdes
that the property can be developed in the manner proposed, in accordance with
any recommendations contained in the report.

According to the City’s geological hazards maps, the subject property is not in
any identified geologic hazards zone.

OVERALL CONCLUSION

The request does not comply with the criteria established for the approval of a
tentative plan for a partition and is hereby DENIED.

Exhibit ‘A’ — Findings of Fact: Partition No. 3PAR-15—Jonathan Holbrook. Page 6 of 6



(ity 01 Newport
Land Use Applicatio...

PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE. COMPLETE ALL BOXES. Usn AJDLTIONAI

EXHIBIT 6

pplicant Name(s):

ZOWL-rFJJ %aLRc
Property Owner Name(s):

Applicant Mailing Address: Property Owner Mailing Address: If other than applicant4i5
QL1?

Applicant Telephone No.: Property Owner Telephone No.: If other than applicant

.
- 1

E-mail: E-mail:
Authorized Representative(s): Person authorized to submit and act on this application on applicants behalf

Authorized Representative Mailing Address:

Authorized Representative Telephone No.: E-Mail: -_______________________________________________________

Project Information
Property Location: Street name if address # not assigned

thy? OI
Tax Assessors Map No.: I 0 — I —Z 0 - ITax Lot(s): 6 7.. & 0Zone Designation: Legal Description: Add additional sheets if necessary
Comp Plan Designation:

Brief Description of Land Use Request(s):

iIWP PLRJ(TtU I2 pAL CU1T
FR&\PICL

Examples:
1. Move north Property line 5 feet south, or
2. Variance of 2 feet from the requited 75-foot front yard setback

Existing Structures: If any

Topography and Vegetation:

APPLICATION TYPE (please check all that apply)

fl Annexation Interpretation UGB Amendment
Appeal E Minor Replat Vacation
Comi Plan/Map Amendment ,iPartition E Variance/Adjustment
Conditional Use Permit fl Planned Development PCfl PC fl Property line Adjustment Staffflst

fl Shoreland Impact fl Zone OrdfMap AmendmentDesign Review

Geologic Permit E Subdivision EEl OtherM 110 P 1LIto J
E Temporary Use Permit

File No. Assigned: 3 I 5

Date Received: “7 ‘ Fee Amount: 3.i “ Date Accepted as Complete:
Received By: ‘-‘ Receipt No.: ). 2 7liL’ Accepted By:

(SEE REVERSE SIDE)
Community Development & Planning Department• 769 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365. Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Director

1/10



I understand that I am responsible for addressing the legal criteria relevant to my application and that the
burden of proof justifying an approval of my application is with me. I also understand that this responsibility
is independent of any opinions expressed in the Community Development & Planning Department Staff
Report concerning the applicable criteria.

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge, all information provided in this application is accurate.

Date Signed

Date Signed

Authorized Representative Signature(s) (If other than applicant) Date Signed

Please note application will not be accepted without all applicable signatures.

Please ask staff for a list of application submittal requirements for your specific type of request.

Property Owner Signature(s) (‘If other than applicant)

Community Development & Planning Department• 169 SW Coast Hwy, Newport, OR 97365• Derrick I. Tokos, AICP, Director



it jG
I

rcc r

— •c
::, :,
v

.
\

z



July-15-2015
Jon Holbrook
405 SE Scenic Loop
Newport, OR 97365
Ph. 541-265-9366

Atten: City of Newport Planning Dept.

RE; Minor Partition of tax lot no 10-11-20-BC-00607-00

Point by Point findings of facts per application submittal requirements

a. The tentative plan complies with the definition of a partition, one property being
divided into two.

b. Both lots will be conforming to the requirements of NMC 13.05.030, See attached
Proposed Site Plan. Following are Point by Point addressing of NMC 13.05.030

A. At 10,913 sq ft and 9200 sq ft each property conforms.
B. Each lot has frontage on a public street
C. Properties are not through lots.
D. New property line follows the center line of the existing utility easement and is

near 90 degrees from sidelines.
E. No special setback lines exist on property other than easement access lines

which are shown on Site Plan.
F. Proposed lots do not contain more the 175% of required minimum lot size.
G. No wetlands are existing on the property
H. Property does not fall within a geologic hazard area.

c. All key public facilities are installed and run to both proposed properties. Fire access and
utility need requirements have been approved and met per City of Newport fire
Department.

d. Applicant will agree to sign consent to any local improvement districts.
e. Public utilities have been previously approved and installed per City or Newport

requirements. Access road has been previously approved and installed per City of
Newport requirements.

f. All public improvements have been previously approved and installed per City of
Newport requirements.

g. Property does not fall within any geologic hazard zone.

Sincerely
Property Owner
Jon Holbrook



-v

I,
.

-1 4
)



Western Title & Escrow Company
255 SW Coast Highway, Suite 100

Newport, OR 97365\1\t eStern :t&Ec Office Phone: (541) 265-2288
Office Fax: (541) 265-9570

Jon Holbrook
405 Scenic Loop
Newport, OR 97365

Date Prepared: July 17, 2015

Report Number: 104360

Lot Book Service: $200.00

LOT BOOK REPORT

We have searched our Tract Indices as to the following described real property:

Parcel 1, PARTITION PLAT NO. 2010-4, according to the official plat thereof,
fi’ed for record February 23, 2010, Lincoln County Plat Records.

and dated as of July 02, 2015 at 5:00 p.m.

We find that the title is vested in:

Jonathan B. Holbrook and Teresa J. Goldade, as tenants by the entirety

We also find the following apparent encumbrances prior to the effective date hereof:

1. 2015-2016 taxes a lien in an amount to be determined, but not yet payable.

2. City liens, if any of the City of Newport.

3. Subject property is either situated within the urban renewal boundaries or within the
shared area of the City of Newport and is subject to the terms and provisions thereof.

4. Agreement, including the terms and provisions thereof, for water supply, between
Agate Beach Water District and L. Leonard Krause, as
Recorded: July 15, 1960
Document No.: Book 209, Page 431, Lincoln County Records

5. Covenants, easements and restrictions, but omitting restrictions, if any, based on
race, color, religion, national origin, or physical or mental handicap, imposed by
instrument, including the terms and provisions thereof,
Recorded: November24, 1987
Document No.: Book 187, Page 2094, Lincoln County Records

As a CONDITION of this conveyance, Grantee and its successors covenant that if any
of said property herein conveyed is to be used as a park, said park will be named

Lot Book Report Page 1 of 3 We s t e r n -



Lot Book Report Order No.: 104360

6. Terms, provisions and conditions, including but not limited to maintenance
provisions contained in Easement,
Recorded: September 10, 1992
Document No.: Book 250, page 500, Lincoln County Records

7. Land Partition Deterred Improvement Agreement, including the terms and
provisions thereof,
Dated: September 27, 2004
Recorded: May 3, 2005
Document No.: 200506698, Lincoln County Records
Between: City of Newport
And: Jonathan Holbrook and Teresa Goldade

8. Easements and notes as set forth on the recorded Partition Plat 2005-2 1.

9. Terms, provisions and conditions, including but not limited to maintenance
provisions contained in Easement,
Recorded: August 3, 2005
Document No.: 200512067, Lincoln County Records

10. An easement created by instrument, including the terms and provisions thereof,
Dated: August 15, 2007
Recorded: August 15, 2007
Document No.: 200711778, Lincoln County Records
In favor of: Central Lincoln Peoples Utility District
For: Powerline and facilities

11. Land Partition Waiver of Remonstrance , including the terms and provisions
thereof,
Dated: October 30, 2009
Recorded: October 30, 2009
Document No.: 2009-12580, Lincoln County Records
Between: City of Newport
And: Jonathan B. Holbrook and Teresa ]. Goldale

12. Easements and notes as set forth on the recorded Partition PIat 20 10-4.

Note: We find no judgment liens or tax liens against the vestees herein.

Note: Taxes paid in full for the year 2014-2015
Original Amount: $635.28
Tax Lot No.: 10-11-20-BC-00607
Account No.: R520826, Code 104

This report is to be utilized for information only. Any use of this report as a basis
for transferring, encumbering or foreclosing the real property described will
require payment in an amount equivalent to applicable title insurance premium as
required by the rating schedule on file with the Oregon Insurance Division.

Lot Book Report Page 2of 3 WeStern



Lot Book Report Order No.: 104360

The liability of Western Title & Escrow Company is limited to the addressee and
shall not exceed the premium paid hereunder.

Any questions concerning the Lot Book Report should be directed by email to
titleofficersupport@westerntitlc.com.

___ •%____

LotBookRepott Page3o3 \NeStern



I

tf
l

()

/
91

.5
6

/
06

C z

7
7
7
7
7
2
,E

v
7
7
2
7
7
7
7
7
7

<
-

-

—

-
7
7
•
;
,

_
_
_
_
_
_

tN
°

\

U
,

(0 rt (U 2° m (P C
) 0



\N estern
PRIVACY POLICY NOTICE

June 1, 2005

Western Title & Escrow Company is dedicated in providing a basis of trust with you, our
customer, and the public we serve. With respect to the privacy expectations of today’s
consumers, and the requirements of applicable privacy laws, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act
(GLEA) has been enacted to protect the privacy of nonpublic personal information relating to
consumers and customers. GLEA generally prohibits any financial institution, directly or
through its affiliates, from sharing nonpublic personal information about you with a
nonaffiliated third party unless the institution provides you with a notice of its privacy policies
and practices.

We are providing you with this document, which notifies you of our privacy policies and
practices. We reserve the right to change this Privacy Policy Notice from time to time
consistent with applicable privacy laws.

In the course of our business we may collect nonpublic personal information about you from the following
sources:

• Information we receive from you, such as your social security number and information from
applications or other forms we receive from you or your authorized representatives;

• Information about your transaction we secure from our files, or from our affiliates or others;
• Information from our or other internet web sites;
• Information we receive from a consumer reporting agency;
• Information we receive from others involved in your transaction, such as the real estate agent

or lender; and
• Information from the public records maintained by governmental entities that we either obtain

directly from those entities, or from our affiliates or others.

We may disclose any of the above information that we collect about our customers or former customers to
our affiliates or to nonaffiliated third parties as permitted by law.

We also may share your personal information:

• to agents, lenders, brokers or representatives to provide you with the services you requested;
and

• to third-party contractors or service providers who provide services or perform marketing or
other functions on our behalf.

In addition, we will disclose your personal information when you direct or give us permission, when we are
required by law to do so, or when we suspect fraudulent or criminal activities. We also may disclose your
personal information when otherwise permitted by applicable privacy laws such as when disclosure is
needed to enforce our rights arising out of any agreement, transaction or relationship with you.

We restrict access to nonpublic personal information about you to those employees who need to know that
information in order to provide products or services to you. We maintain physical, electronic, and
procedural safeguards that comply with federal regulations to guard your nonpublic information.

GLBA-wTE Disclosure
Orig. 07/01/2001; Rev. 06/01/2005
Good through calendar year 2015



(

\IV estern
PRIVACY POLICY

June 1, 2005

Title V of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLBA) generally prohibits any financial institution, directly or
through its affiliates, from sharing nonpublic personal information about a consumer with a nonaffiliated
third party unless the institution provides the consumer with a notice of its privacy policies and practices,
such as the type of information that it collects about the consumer and the categories of persons or
entities to whom it may be disclosed.

Financial institutions can include title insurance companies, title insurance agents, survey companies,
attorneys, appraisers, flood certification providers, and other providers of settlement services on
residential transactions.

In compliance with the GLBA, we do not share nonpublic personal information about a consumer with a
nonaffiliated third party, unless allowed by law.

In compliance with the GLEA, our privacy practices regarding nonpublic personal financial information of
consumers and customers (as defined by GLEA) are as follows, subject to any exceptions as permitted by
law.

• We protect nonpublic personal information of customers and consumers.
• We allow access on need to know basis only. Only company personnel who need to know can

access the information. Examples may include accounting personnel, title examiners, title
underwriter personnel, auditors, escrow closers and their assistants, management, scanning
personnel, and claims related investigation personnel, including but not limited to retained
counsel.

• We allow customers and consumers to review their nonpublic personal information that we have
collected, and we allow them to provide us with requests for amendment or deletion of such
information, to which we will reasonably respond.

• We require consent from a proper party to the transaction to provide nonpublic personal
information relating to their transaction, which includes closed transactions.

• We maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards that comply with law to guard the
nonpublic personal information. We allow only authorized personnel to review the information,
and we keep closed files in secure storage, with limited access, or we store the files on
computer with limited password access.

• We generally do not keep copies of credit reports, loan applications, and tax returns on
consumers and customers.

• If we share starter title information, we don’t share nonpublic personal information, such as
sales price (unless it is public information), policy numbers, or amount of insurance on owner’s
policies issued to customers.

• We don’t share nonpublic personal information, such as social security numbers and bank
account information, as may be shown on affidavits of indemnity, instructions to escrow, or as
may be provided by a principal lender, broker or real estate agent.

• We periodically inform our personnel about our policy.
• We don’t share nonpublic personal information with independent contractors, unless they have

a need in the processing of the transaction as allowed by law.

Dated: June 1, 2005
Western Title & Escrow Company

GLBA-WTE Disclosure
Dog. 07/01/2001; Rev. 06/01/2005
Good through calendar year 2015



o
4
’

240.4W

0
4ç
V

IU
4

05
201
206
E

04
700
701

q00
501
BO

O

—
1801
2201
2301
2401
2501
2901
3001
3101
3301
3401
3601
3701

I
SEE

M
A

P
10

II
20

CI
i/iS

C
O

R
10

II
2C

NEW
E

P
o
w

0

•0

O
il

C
D

I



L
O

C
,i

V1
TY

SA
N

IT
A

R
Y

SE
W

E
R

P
A

R
C

E
L

O
PO

SE
D

A
N

D
EX

?A
V

EL
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

E
D

36
’

U
TI

LI
TY

C
E

SS
E

A
SE

M
E

N
T

“
,

IV
P

“

PR
O

PO
SE

D
25

’

PR
C

-
.

I-
’-

>

_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_

—
—

f
l
\
A

/
A

\
/

_
‘

A

E
S

S
E

A
SE

M
E

N
T

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

pR
O

P
O

S
E

D
E

A
SE

M
E

N
T

L
IN

E
S

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

E
A

SE
M

E
N

T
L

IN
E

S

1

6”
W

TR
—
-

—

/

55

W
I

R
-
-

-

P
A

R
C

E
L

2
F

—
_
_
v
1
R

—
—

-
-
-
-

—
-

—
W

IR

/
1’

tV
)
‘
v
-

,
‘
/
/

(
t
1

‘
i

H
-
’
.
3

V
.1

•_
.=

O
-L

-
-

/
c

,/
f
D

L
-
2

7



IN
D

IC
A

TE
S

PO
U

N
D

M
O

N
U

M
EN

T
O

tt
’

R
ER

A
N

19
10

1
A

0
1
1
0
W

PL
A

ST
IC

C
A

P
M

A
R

K
ED

‘O
EM

SO
N

W
H

O
.

N
EW

PO
R

T
O

R
.’

H
E

W
FO

R
C

O
N

TR
O

L
B

U
T

N
O

T
N

E
W

FO
R

50
4)

70
LI

N
E

IF
F

IA
T

—
SE

E
N

O
TE

‘A
t

SE
E

P
P

20
15

—
27

&
C

E
13

76
4.

o
IN

D
IC

A
TE

S
FO

U
N

D
5
/C

IR
O

N
RO

N
PE

R
E

S
40

33
.

N
E

W
.

•
94

0,
C

A
TE

D
FO

U
N

D
M

O
N

M
IE

N
T

A
S

R
ES

C
R

N
ED

H
ER

EO
N

(1
40

01
CR

YE
S

R
EC

O
R

D
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
PE

R
P

P
20

0.
5-

27
,

M
Y

C
N

A
R

LE
S

A.
V

EN
IS

O
N

.

(j
IN

D
IC

A
TE

S
R

EC
O

R
D

IN
FO

RM
A

V
O

N
FO

R
PP

10
57

—
SM

,
D

Y
C

H
A

R
LE

S
A.

O
EN

IS
TH

.

(3
IN

D
IC

A
TE

S
R

EC
O

R
D

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

PE
R

U
TI

liT
Y

RO
W

EA
SE

M
EN

T
D

D
E.

29
97

77
77

9.

(P
IN

U
IC

A
U

S
R

EC
O

R
D

IN
FO

R
M

A
TI

O
N

PE
R

D
O

C
U

M
EN

T
t

2
9

9
8

0
9

7
4

0
.

fl
2

B
O

C
A

TE
D

R
EC

O
R

D
IN

FO
RM

A
H

O
N

PE
R

O
R

O
F

ST
O

P
M

A
P

0
1

-8
-4

.

(3
3

IN
O

IC
A

U
S

R
EC

O
R

O
IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
FO

R
8
0
1
K

2
5
0

PA
R

E
40

0.

fl
4

N
O

IC
A

TE
D

R
EC

O
R

D
RI

RO
RM

A
D

O
N

PE
R

C
E

70
79

7
(2

0
0
0

D
Y

JA
M

ES
D

00
5O

N
).

(3
0

W
O

C
A

IT
S

R
EC

O
R

O
IN

FO
RM

A
D

O
N

FO
R

C
E

13
10

4
(7

99
0

D
Y

R
U

SS
EL

L
A

SI
N

SO
N

j

(3
0

IN
D

IC
A

TE
S

R
EC

O
R

D
IN

FO
RM

A
D

O
N

PE
R

C
E

4
0
3
3

A
N

D
C

E
50

7.

<
0

IN
D

IC
A

IE
S

C
A

LE
D

M
TE

D
FA

L
SE

N
O

(3
O

R
00

0I
O

JC
A

T
E

D
M

EA
SU

R
ED

V
A

LU
E

A
PP

R
O

V
A

L
S

A
4
4
n
t

x
¼

/,
O

W
O

F
N

ER
PO

N
T.

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

D
IR

EC
TO

R
G

A
IT

,g
;;

‘2
p.

A
c
/O

LI
N

C
O

LN
C

O
U

N
TY

SU
N

29
.1

0
1

D
A

TE

&
ó

7A
.n

nn
Z

,
c
ii

o
2
-
n
-

LI
N

C
O

LN
C

O
U

N
TY

A
S

S
E

S
N

D
A

TE

b
d

L
1

a
S

O
R

Lc
t&

&
-1

7
-/

Q
5
0
0
0
1
5

ED
IT

H
TY

TA
X

C
&

L
E

C
T

O
R

-
—

‘-
4 0 ‘-
4 r a t I— a a z 0 a U 0

1
4

0
7

4
0

0
0
0
0
1
)5

—
10

01
51

41
1

0
0
7
4
0
7
)

C
D

M
M

W
H

O
R

0
0

M
P

C
O

M
IR

SI
N

O
R

E
SP

R
E

W
‘A

çw
;t

tt
,.D

G
it

B
A

SI
S

(F
B

E
A

R
IN

G
S

TH
E

LI
N

E
D

E
T

H
E

E
N

C
’6

)
M

D
I

()
I)

R
EA

R
S

N
O

R
TH

0
7
4
5
5
7
’

EA
ST

.
O

W
R

EC
O

R
D

V
A

LU
E

EA
LE

I9
.A

TE
R

P
0

0
1

PP
20

19
—

27
.

tsL
4R

RA
TI

V
E

TH
E

PU
R

PO
SE

O
F

TH
IS

SU
R

R
EY

IS
TO

R
EP

EA
T

AN
D

TO
O

TH
ED

PA
R

TI
TI

O
N

PA
R

C
EL

O
R

E
O

F
PP

20
05

—
21

IN
TO

TH
R

EE
PA

R
C

EL
S

A
T

SU
D

A
N

N
LR

EO
R

.
M

O
N

U
M

EN
TS

FR
DI

A
PP

2S
E

S—
2I

N
O

N
E

FO
R

N
0

AN
D

N
E

W
TO

C
O

N
TR

O
L

11
95

SU
R

R
EY

0
0

1
T

H
E

A
U

T
E

PT
O

N
ET

A
IL

ES
IN

N
O

TE
S

‘A
’

A
N

U
‘N

’.
T

IE
O

N
E

M
CT

N
EE

R
hO

A
N

D
17

0
W

A
S

H
E

W
A

S
TH

E
50

0T
H

O
N

E
O

F
TH

IS
PI

N
T

AN
D

W
A

EX
IL

N
D

EA
ST

ER
LY

TO
IN

TE
N

SE
C

T
0T

H
TH

E
N

O
R

W
A

Y
H

O
R

T
O

P
W

AY
A

S
0
0
0
8
0

P.
ER

EO
N

.

SI
E

V
E

V
O

R
‘S

C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
I

EA
TH

A
N

0.
N

O
S

Y
,

D
O

E
W

E
D

Y
U

S
O

P
Y

Th
A

T
I

A
N

TE
C

O
R

R
EC

TL
Y

SU
R

R
E

IW
M

ID
M

A
RK

ED
0T

H
PR

O
PE

R
M

O
N

U
M

EN
TS

11
9.

LA
N

D
R

EP
R

ES
ER

TE
D

ON
TH

E
A

N
N

EX
ED

PL
A

Y
TH

E
EX

TE
RI

O
R

N
O

R
N

D
A

A
Y

O
F

O
Il

E
R

IS
D

ES
C

N
W

ED
A

S
FO

LL
O

W
S:

EO
N

M
EN

O
N

D
A

T
TH

E
IN

IT
4I

.
PO

N
T

80
01

0
A

FO
R

N
D

S
/C

IR
O

N
5
0
1

0T
H

A
Y

EL
LO

W
PL

A
ST

C
CA

R
W

A
RN

ED
D

ER
IS

O
N

W
R

Y
.

N
C

A
R

O
N

T
O

R
.’

A
S

ES
TA

B
LI

SH
ED

0T
H

PP
20

05
—

21
:

TH
EN

C
E

N
Sl

’2
1’

S5
’R

FO
R

2U
.O

8
FC

TT
;

TH
EN

C
E

S
8h

21
’l

A
’E

FO
R

2O
R

.O
N

FR
ET

TO
T

IE
R

EO
N

N
IN

U
O

P
A

10
47

7.
44

FO
O

T
5
0
0
1
5

CO
M

AE
TO

TH
E

LE
FT

;

TH
EN

C
E

A
LO

N
G

SN
O

TH
R

R
E

(T
H

E
LO

N
G

ER
O

R
D

O
P

70
90

1
SE

A
R

S
SO

O
’R

4’
U

S’
W

78
9.

77
F

E
fl

11
40

1)
01

A
W

IT
H

A
L

A
N

U
S

O
P

0
5

5
2

0
’

FO
R

16
5.

77
FE

ET
;

TH
EN

C
E

N
88

’A
U

’S
O

’W
FO

R
24

9.
43

FE
ET

;

TH
EN

CE
R

2I
20

’O
V

E
FO

R
1
9
1
3
8

FE
ET

;

ID
TH

E
IN

IT
A

L
PO

N
T

,
EO

R
TW

N
A

1O
0.

07
A

C
R

ES
M

O
RE

OR
LE

SS
.

I
ST

A
TE

O
P

O
R

EG
O

N
5

0
C

O
U

N
TY

O
P

LI
N

CT
H

2I
(o

o
,2

I
N

ER
ED

Y
C

ER
TI

FY
TH

A
T

TH
IS

PA
R

TI
TI

O
N

PE
A

T
W

A
S

IE
E

T
C

U
FO

R
R

EC
O

R
D

O
N

H
A

S
D

A
Y

O
F

t
P

R
I
A

{
f
A

t
C

4
I
(
I
i
L

o
’
a
o
o
c
,E

f
L

A
N

D
R

EC
O

R
D

ED
A

S
M

AR
71

R
O

N
R

A
T

N
U

M
B

ER
B

A
lD

”
!

LI
N

C
D

IJ
I

C
O

U
N

TY
R

E
C

O
R

D
S

rn
s/

a
c
s

SE
C

R
N

%
O

ER
M

H
”

D
EC

LA
R

A
TI

O
N

kN
O

W
AL

L
PE

O
R

LE
O

F
TH

ES
E

PR
E

T
E

N
T

Z
TH

A
T

.0
10

4
TH

A
N

01
0
0
4
0
0
0
0
1

A
N

D
TE

R
ES

A
S

C
O

L
D

A
X

4
5

TH
E

O
A

N
ER

S
O

F
TH

E
PR

O
PE

R
TY

D
ES

ER
ID

ES
IN

TH
E

A
N

N
EX

ED

W
R

R
E

Y
O

R
S

EE
RT

W
TC

A
TE

N
A

IC
C

A
U

SE
D

SA
ID

PR
O

PE
R

TY
TO

D
E

P4
01

11
10

49
.0

IN
TO

TH
N

CE
PA

R
C

EL
S

A
S

5
0

0
8

0
IE

R
E

O
N

A
N

D
IN

IR
FO

F
C

R
EA

TE
EA

SE
M

EN
TS

5’
A

N
O

‘N
’

A
S

R
ET

M
LX

D
H

ER
EO

N
,

IN
A

C
EO

R
O

A
N

C
E

70
TH

IR
E

PP
O

’A
SO

N
G

O
P

0
0
.1

C
H

A
PT

ER
99

.

S
7
’
Y

0
;
s
h
f

A
C

K
fr

V
W

LE
D

G
I’

C
N

T
.
“
—

‘
J

ST
A

TE
O

F
O

R
EG

O
N

s
I

EO
M

W
IS

1W
R

MO
. A

41
95

T8
I

EO
R

N
TY

O
P

LI
N

C
O

LN
L

_
_

,
M

10
01

10
11

00
71

P7
09

0s
IE

T
O

IJ

2
0
4
0

O
W

TE
A

R
09

09
.

B
EF

O
R

E

TH
E

U
N

D
ER

ID
O

N
ES

N
O

TA
R

Y
P

O
O

lE
,

PE
R

SO
N

A
LL

Y
A

PP
EA

R
ED

AN
NA

TH
A

N
0.

D
O

LR
R

O
O

R
M

ID
TE

R
ES

A
S

U
O

SA
R

E
PE

R
SO

N
A

LL
Y

K
N

O
A

N
TO

M
E

O
R

PR
U

IE
D

TO
M

E
B

Y
M

EA
N

S
O

F
SA

TI
SF

A
C

TO
R

Y

EW
O

ER
C

E
00

R
E

D
C

PE
R

SO
N

S
W

HO
E

SE
W

T
T

D
T

IC
SP

A
N

IN
ST

R
U

M
EN

T

\J
F

A
&

o
a
Q

.
44

E
Y

L
IY

SE
O

N
O

TA
R

Y
SI

D
N

A
TI

R
E:

\&
n
&

&
O

W
tk

rs
u
D

ti
s&

0

#
0

L
E

(F
N

D

(0
4
0
2
3
2
)3

6
O

25
.2

D
’)

.
‘

SU
R

R
EY

O
R

EN
LA

P
—

M
O

N
U

M
EN

T
6
i)

IS
1,

70
FE

ET
5
2
1
’2

0
’D

7
’W

Z
’

‘
6

R
E

S
E

T
M

O
N

U
M

EN
T

SE
E

N
O

TE
‘A

’
BE

LO
W

.
V

M
W

,
IN

VV
7Q

T
C

T
I

R
O

TE
‘A

’
14

’7
I

.3
I

.
‘%

°
-

IN
TH

E
E

T
H

JR
U

O
P

O
R

B
FO

LD
W

OR
N

IT
W

A
S

FO
N

SU
TH

A
T

PP
20

05
—

U
I

O
E

W
W

P
S

5
(N

O
T

C
O

N
ST

R
U

E
IT

O
)

4
’S

t
0T

H
TH

E
EA

ST
N

ES
T

W
IT

E
A

U
?C

O
P

SE
C

TO
R

20
,

A
S

ES
TA

B
LI

SA
ED

0
0
1

ER
15

81
4,

,
4

(3
3*

1
A

A
N

N
A

10
07

)
ER

40
23

(.
01

49
W

A
N

N
A

10
07

A
N

D
IO

N
S)

AN
D

A
S

R
ET

R
A

C
ED

BY
SE

E
Q

A
TC

LA
M

D
EE

D
0
0
1

20
08

00
74

0
4

JA
M

ES
O

ER
IS

O
N

IN
ES

18
19

7.
O

N
C

E
TH

E
N

IT
H

T,
SI

T
E

,
A

N
D

IN
TE

R
ES

T
TO

TH
E

—
‘

N
C

O
L

N
E

O
N

N
W

SO
O

W
O

P
N

EW
PO

R
T

PR
O

PE
R

TY
SO

U
TH

O
F

TH
IS

ER
75

41
M

D
C

S
40

33
LI

R
E

W
A

S
PR

EW
O

R
TE

Y
R

EJ
LN

SE
D

<
SE

E
01

1
TO

,.A
IM

D
EE

D
M

E
0
2
5
0

P
40

9

ST
D

IA
TT

EM
M

U
ES

D
S

(R
EC

O
R

D
ED

IN
M

E
N

O
O

N
25

0,
PA

T
E

S
40

8
M

ID
40

4)
,

TH
E

A
RE

A

O
P

D
R

ER
LA

P
W

A
S

N
O

T
40

0,
00

00
40

TH
IS

PA
R

T
R

O
N

.
TH

E
W

E
R

T
S

EO
PA

ES
SE

S
55

71
0

0
5

0
0

IS
TO

H
O

N
O

R
TH

E
PR

ER
O

R
D

LY
R

EC
O

R
D

ED
O

RI
TE

LA
JM

EC
EU

S
A

N
D

LA
Y

N
D

,
,

72
.0

6

C
LA

M
TO

TH
E

A
R

EA
O

F
O

R
ER

LA
P

A
S

SU
D

A
N

R
ER

EO
N

.
13

)
6

0
0

3
0

0
N

N
7
1
B

O
’)

03
3

SE
T

5
/6

’
D

Y
3
3
’

0
0

0
4

0
A

lT
O

A
0
1
1
0
W

PL
A

SS
C

C
A

P
M

A
R

EE
D

‘C
M

E
L

E
Y

0
A

fl
&

S
T

0

FO
U

N
D

W
O

N
RO

N
0
0
1

TE
LL

U
W

PL
A

ST
IC

C
A

P
M

A
RK

ED
‘C

LA
B

IT
.’

N
E

W
FO

R
C

O
N

TR
O

L.

SE
C

C
E

10
I9

7.

N
EW

E
A

O
U

IE
R

T
‘K

A
I
t

O
D

E
O

R
N

A
TE

N
O

N
ES

EL
U

SI
B

E
0
5
0
W

EA
SE

M
EN

T
D

E
W

,
U

N
D

ER
M

ID
A

ER
O

SS
TH

A
T

PO
R

TI
O

N
O

P
PA

R
C

EL
1,

A
S

0
0
0
0
6

A
ER

EO
N

.
FO

R
TH

E
RE

N
ED

IT
RE

PA
R

C
EL

S
2

M
ID

3.

N
EW

EA
SE

M
EN

T
‘8

’

A
ID

’
W

O
E

PR
IV

A
TE

N
O

N
E

U
E

W
S

W
U

T
L

W
EA

SE
M

EN
T

O
PE

N
,

U
N

O
ER

A
RO

A
C

R
O

SS
TH

A
T

PO
N

TO
N

O
P

PA
R

C
EL

S
2

M
ID

3,
A

S
54

07
01

N
ER

EO
N

.
FO

R
TH

E
B

E
R

E
FT

O
F

PA
R

C
EL

I.

N
O

TE
‘C

’

I
_S

O
M

J
D

EL
Y

A
I
.

._
A

N
C

(

I
R

ET
C

II
IU

V
N

’0
7’

l
I

C
EO

N
ER

TE
Y

U
R

D
ER

O
R

O
R

N
D

01
04

19
.5

AN
D

SE
N

E
W

A
L

W
E

W
E

R
C

E
S

C
M

A
C

C
ES

S
T

H
00

0T
H

TH
E

O
R

A
O

U
,

O
N

T
E

N
A

T
LO

C
A

TE
D

00
00

08
11

O
E

W
PA

R
C

E
s

I
M

ID
IR

E
S

O
R

S
C

A
S

T
EO

RN
EW

O
P

PA
R

C
EL

2.
N

O
R

EC
O

R
D

ER
EA

SE
M

EN
T

D
O

C
U

M
EN

T
W

A
S

FO
R

R
O

FO
R

TH
IS

D
W

TE
W

A
Y

.
SE

EK
L

E
O

N
.

C
O

R
bE

L
A

S
TO

W
O

N
TO

TH
A

T
M

A
Y

B
A

TE
SE

ER
A

C
ID

IW
EO

ST
O

TH
ER

S
ER

N
O

U
O

R
TH

E
PA

ST
U

SE
O

F
TH

IS
PR

O
PE

R
TY

.

A
R

J
E

C
r

P
0

A
C

O
L

’0
1

A
0

r
P

E
E

tO
M

B
.

‘8
7
,

P
40

9.
’

9.
9O

’/

1
7

P
E

O
F

M
V

F
4
,o

P
E

’P
E

A
T

F
7
5

7
4

D
Ir

J
O

E
))

A
o

4
P

A
R

k

72
.0

0’
55

.2
0’

8
1
2
0
’

CA
D

Y
W

’3
7’

5
0

S
F

ID
S

I3
.A

A
’

S
fl

5’
D

D
’W

55
.O

F

R
EE

CA
(o

io
’i

t(
(5

0.
91

’)
1
l0

S
I3

.4
4
1

[5
22

S’
O

R
’W

(
[5

8.
51

’)

CA
O

’lD
’T

I’
55

.0
3’

10
51

3.
44

S
22

5’
21

’W
55

.0
3’

R
EC

O
R

D

I
N

U
N

I
R

E
A

R
IN

U
ID

IS
T

A
R

C
E

I
R

EA
M

N
O

IO
S

T
A

R
C

E
I

I
LI

I
N

07
’3

3’
35

’W
I

10
.0

2’
I)

N
D

T
A

J’
U

O
’W

I
2

0
0

0
’)

I
I

LA
SA

SS
B

’S
A

’W
I

10
.0

5’
I(

50
00

70
’O

I’
W

I
1

0
.0

0
’)

I
I

L
i

I
T

R
7’

22
’I

7E
7
0
0
0
’

I(
S

6
7
2
2
’I

7
E

I
70

.0
0’

))

I
LA

I
R

2’
32

’A
3’

E
I

20
.0

0’
I

)W
2’

37
’A

3’
E

I
20

.0
0’

)
I

E
A

T
H

A
N

0.
N

IC
L

E
T

C
EN

TF
T

TH
IS

TO
N

E
I

LA
I

N
2’

32
’4

3’
E

I
11

82
’

I
I

A
T

R
U

E
A

N
D

EV
A

C
T

,
LB

N
87

22
’I

T
’W

10
.0

0’
I)N

87
’2

2’
I7

’W
10

.0
0’

]
C

O
PY

O
P

TH
E

-

-
-

O
R

IU
N

A
L

.

S
U

R
V

E
Y

T
O

W
’

S
U

R
V

E
Y

D
Y

’

JO
N

H
O

L
B

R
O

O
K

P
IO

N
E

E
R

S
U

R
V

E
Y

IN
G

T
E

R
E

S
A

J.
G

O
L

D
A

D
E

A
R

E
P

L
A

T
o

r
P

A
R

C
E

L
5.

P
P

2
0
0
5
’-

Z
D

N
W

2
JA

,
S

E
C

.
2
0
,

T
ID

S
,

R
L

SW
.

1
)5

.
0
1

N
E

W
PO

R
T

,
L

P
C

E
L

N
C

ER
A

IT
Y

,
O

R
E

G
O

N

10
0

O
D

O
R

P
t

50
11

18
SE

A
-C

F.
O

R
T

SE
R

I
0
7
3
0
0

54
1—

85
0—

40
45



N
O

[
C

ity
of

N
ew

p
o
rt

C
o
m

m
u
n
ity

D
ev

elo
p
m

en
t

D
e
p

a
rtm

e
n

t

J
1

6
9

S
W

C
o
e
,tH

ig
h
w

u
y

P
hon01:1

5
4

1
.5

7
4

.0
6

2
9

N
n
w

p
o
n
t,

O
R

9
7
3
6
5

F
r1

.5
4
1
.5

7
4
.0

6
4
4

n
lo

p
,rm

h
T

m
a
tn

n
.I

0
1
0
0
1
*

and
1.0o

1011
I
n
tl

p
n
tp

aled
1

1
1

th
,

K
0
1
0
3
1
6

II
6

9
0

1
0

1
9

0
0

1
0

1
0

1
5

0
0

1
0

9
0

1
1

9
1
3
6
9
0
0
0
.

T
h

o
C

ty
N

.
1

9
0

0
3

1
0

1
1

,p
tn

.0
3

Ily
1

1
t0

tttlp
0

3
0

tn
O

r0
1

0
O

ld
1
0
0
r0

0
1
0
,6

o
d

o
,v

a
n

ta
lR

%
f
l.d

to
V

O
lt?

06
.d

tn
n
o
?O

v
900101,0111?

oF
N

,109o6
C

o
n

v
ilIm

o
y

D
n
t&

o
p
v
.v

0
,6

0
6
1
.0

1
.

Z
oning

M
ap

for
F

ile
N

o.
3-P

A
R

-15

Im
ag

e
T

ak
en

Ju
ly

2013
4-Inuh,

4
-b

an
d

D
igital

O
rth

o
p

h
o

to
s

D
avid

S
m

ith
&

A
6

6
0

n
iates,

no.
P

o
rtlan

d
,

O
R

F
eet

0
25

50
100

150
200

A

I

V
7

W0
6
.

7411

V

il4

(I

I

E
I



EXHIBIT 7

TITLE XIII LAND DIVISION

CHAPTER 13.05 SUBDIVISION AND PARTITION

13.05.001 Purpose
13.05.005 Definitions
13.05.010 Standards
13.05.015 Streets
13.05.020 Blocks
13.05.025 Easements
13.05.030 Lots and Parcels
13.05.035 Public Improvements
13.05.040 Public Improvement Requirements
13.05.045 Adequacy of Public Facilities and Utilities

(Electric and Phone)
13.05.050 Underground Utilities and Service Facilities
13.05.055 Street Lights
13.05.060 Street Signs
13.05.065 Monuments
13.05.070 Land Division Application
13.05.075 Preliminary Review and Notice of Hearing
13.05.080 Hearing and Approval for Land Divisions Other

Than a Minor Replat or Partition
13.05.090 Final Plat Requirements for Land Divisions

Other Than Minor Replats or Partitions
13.05.095 Minor Replats and Partitions
13.05.100 Cemeteries
13.05.105 Miscellaneous

CHAPTER 13.50 STANDARDS AFTER SUBDIVISION
APPROVAL

13.50.010 Purpose
13.50.020 Standards in Effect after Subdivision Approval

CHAPTER 13.99 PROPERTY LINE ADJUSTMENTS

13.99.010 Property Line Adjustment
13.99.020 Applicability
13.99.030 City Approval Required
13.99.040 Decision Process
13.99.050 Appeal
13.99.060 Conveyance and Security
13.99.070 Responsibility
13.99.080 Violation



CHAPTER 13.05 SUBDIVISION AND PARTITION

13.05.001 Purpose

This chapter provides uniform standards for the division of
land and the installation of related improvements within the
corporate limits of the city for the purposes of protecting
property values, and furthering the health, safety and general
welfare of the citizens of Newport. The provisions of this
chapter implement Statewide Planning Goals as addressed
in the Newport Comprehensive Plan along with the applicable
portions of Chapters 92 and 227 of the Oregon Revised
Statutes.

13.05.005 Definitions

The following definitions apply in this chapter:

A. Land Division. A subdivision or partition.

B. Lot. A unit of land that is created by a subdivision of land.

1. Corner Lot. A lot with at least two adjacent sides that
abut streets other than alleys, provided the
intersection angle does not exceed 135 degrees.

2. Throucih Lot. A lot having frontage on two parallel, or
approximately parallel, streets other than alleys.

C. Parcel. A unit of land that is created by a partitioning of
land.

D. Partition. To divide land into not more than three parcels
of land within a calendar year, but does not include:

1. A division of land resulting from a lien foreclosure,
foreclosure of a recorded contract for the sale of real
property, or the creation of cemetery lots;

2. An adjustment of a property line by the relocation of a
common boundary where an additional unit of land is
not created and where the existing unit of land
reduced in size by the adjustment complies with any
applicable ordinance; or



3. A sale or grant by a person to a public agency or
public body for state highway, county road, city street,
or other right-of-way purposes, provided that such
road or right-of-way complies with the applicable
comprehensive plan and state law. However, any
property divided by the sale or grant of property for
state highway, county road, city street, or other right-
of-way purposes shall continue to be considered a
single unit of land until such time as the property is
further subdivided or partitioned.

E. Person. Any individual or entity.

F. P1st. The final map or other writing containing all the
descriptions, locations, specifications, dedications,
provisions, and information concerning a subdivision or
partition.

G. Replat. The act of platting the lots, parcels, and
easements in a recorded subdivision or partition plat to
achieve a reconfiguration of the existing subdivision or
partition plat or to increase or decrease the number of lots
in the subdivision. A replat shall not serve to vacate any
public street or road.

H. Replat. Minor. A replat that involves five or fewer lots or
any number of lots or parcels totally contained within a
city block in the original configuration and that does not
involve any public street rights-of-way. A minor replat
shall not serve to vacate any public street or road.

I. Roadway. The portion of a street right-of-way developed
for vehicular traffic.

J. Street. A public or private way other than a driveway that
is created to provide ingress or egress for persons to one
or more lots, parcels, areas, or tracts of land. For the
purposes of this section, a “driveway” is a private way that
begins at a public right-of-way that is proposed to serve
not more than four individual lots/parcels cumulative as
the primary vehicular access to those individual
lots/parcels.

1. Alley. A narrow street through a block primarily for
vehicular service access to the back or side of
properties otherwise abutting on another street.



2. Arterial. A Street of considerable continuity which is
primarily a traffic artery among large areas.

3. Half-street. A portion of the width of a right of way,
usually along the edge of a subdivision or partition,
where the remaining portion of the Street could be
provided in another subdivision or partition, and
consisting of at least a sidewalk and curb on one side
and at least two travel lanes.

4. Marginal Access Street. A minor street parallel and
adjacent to a major arterial street providing access to
abutting properties, but protected from through traffic.

5. Minor Street. A street intended primarily for access to
abutting properties.

K. Subdivide Land. To divide an area or tract of land into four
or more lots within a calendar year.

L. Subdivision. Either an act of subdividing land or an area
or tract of land subdivided as defined in this section.

13.05.010 Standards

Land divisions shall comply with the requirements of this
chapter as applicable to the land division.

13.05.015 Streets

A. Criteria for Consideration of Modifications to Street
Design. As identified throughout the street standard
requirements, modifications may be allowed to the
standards by the approving authority. In allowing for
modifications, the approving authority shall consider
modifications of location, width, and grade of streets in
relation to existing and planned streets, to topographical
or other geological/environmental conditions, to public
convenience and safety, and to the proposed use of land
to be served by the streets. The street system as modified
shall assure an adequate traffic circulation system with
intersection angles, grades, tangents, and curves
appropriate for the traffic to be carried considering the
terrain. Where location is not shown in the Transportation
System Plan, the arrangement of streets shall either:



1. Provide for the continuation or appropriate projection
of existing principal streets in surrounding areas; or

2. Conform to a plan for the neighborhood approved or
adopted by the Planning Commission to meet a
particular situation where topographical or other
conditions make continuance or conformance to
existing streets impractical.

B. Minimum Right-of-Way and Roadway Width. Unless
otherwise indicated in the Transportation System Plan,
the street right-of-way and roadway widths shall not be
less than the minimum width in feet shown in the following
table:

TyDe of Street Minimum Right-of-Way Width Minimum Roadway Width

Arterial, Corn mer- 80 feet 44 feet
cial, and Industrial

Collector 60 feet 44 feet

Minor Street 50 feet 36 feet

Radius for turn-around 50 feet 45 feet
At end of cul-de-sac

Alleys 25 feet 20 feet

Modifications to this requirement may be made by the
approving authority where conditions, particularly
topography, geology, and/or environmental constraints, or the
size and shape of the area of the subdivision or partition,
make it impractical to otherwise provide buildable sites,
narrower right-of-way and roadway width may be accepted. If
necessary, slope easements may be required.

C. Reserve Strips. Reserve strips giving a private property
owner control of access to streets are not allowed.

D. Alignment. Streets other than minor streets shall be in
alignment with existing streets by continuations of their center
lines. Staggered Street alignment resulting in “T” intersections
shall leave a minimum distance of 200 feet between the
center lines of streets having approximately the same
direction and, in no case, shall be less than 100 feet. If not
practical to do so because of topography or other conditions,
this requirement may be modified by the approving authority.



E. Future Extensions of Streets. Proposed streets within a land
division shall be extended to the boundary of the land
division. A turnaround if required by the Uniform Fire Code
will be required to be provided. If the approval authority
determines that it is not necessary to extend the streets to
allow the future division of adjoining land in accordance with
this chapter, then this requirement may be modified such that
a proposed Street does not have to be extended to the
boundary of the land division.

F. Intersection Angles.

1. Streets shall be laid out to intersect at right angles.

2. An arterial intersecting with another street shall have at
least 100 feet of tangent adjacent to the intersection.

3. Other streets, except alleys, shall have at least 50 feet of
tangent adjacent to the intersection.

4. Intersections which contain an acute angle of less than 80
degrees or which include an arterial street shall have a
minimum corner radius sufficient to allow for a roadway
radius of 20 feet and maintain a uniform width between
the roadway and the right-of-way line.

5. No mote than two streets may intersect at any one point.

6. If it is impractical due to topography or other conditions
that require a lesser angle, the requirements of this
section may be modified by the approval authority. In no
case shall the acute angle in Subsection F.(1.) be less
than 80 degrees unless there is a special intersection
design.

G. Half Street. Half streets are not allowed. Modifications to this
requirement may be made by the approving authority to allow
half streets only where essential to the reasonable
development of the land division, when in conformity with the
other requirements of these regulations and when the city
finds it will be practical to require the dedication of the other
half when the adjoining property is divided. Whenever a half
Street IS adjacent to a tract property to be divided, the other
half of the street shall be provided.

H. Sidewalks. Sidewalks in conformance with the city’s adopted
sidewalk design standards are required on both sides of all



streets within the proposed land division and are required
along any street that abuts the land division that does not
have sidewalk abutting the property within the land division.
The city may exempt or modify the requirement for sidewalks
only upon the issuance of a variance as defined in the Zoning
Ordinance.

I. Cul-de-sac. A cul-de-sac shall have a maximum length of 400
feet and serve building sites for not more than 18 dwelling
units. A cul-de-sac shall terminate with a circular turn-around
meeting minimum Uniform Fire Code requirements.
Modifications to this requirement may be made by the
approving authority. A pedestrian or bicycle way may be
required by easement or dedication by the approving
authority to connect from a cul-de-sac to a nearby or abutting
street, park, school, or trail system to allow for efficient
pedestrian and bicycle connectivity between areas if a
modification is approved and the requested easement or
dedication has a rational nexus to the proposed development
and is roughly proportional to the impacts created by the
proposed land division.

J. Street Names. Except for extensions of existing streets, no
street name shall be used which will duplicate or be confused
with the name of an existing Street. Street names and
numbers shall conform to the established pattern in the city,
as evident in the physical landscape and described in City of
Newport Ordinance No. 665, as amended.

K. Marginal Access Streets. Where a land division abuts or
contains an existing or proposed arterial street, the Planning
Commission may require marginal access streets, reverse
frontage lots with suitable depth, screen planting contained in
a non-access reservation along the rear or side property line,
or other treatment necessary for adequate protection of
residential properties and to afford separation of through and
local traffic.

L. Alleys. Alleys shall be provided in commercial and industrial
districts. If other permanent provisions for access to off-street
parking and loading facilities are provided, the approving
authority is authorized to modify this provision if a
determination is made that the other permanent provisions
for access to off-street parking and loading facilities are
adequate to assure such access. The corners of alley
intersections shall have a radius of not less than 12 feet.



73.05.020 Blocks

A. General. The length, width, and shape of blocks for non
residential subdivisions shall take into account the need for
adequate building site size and Street width, and shall
recognize the limitations of the topography.

B. Size. No block shall be more than 1,000 feet in length
between street corners. Modifications to this requirement
may be made by the approving authority if the Street 5

adjacent to an arterial street or the topography or the location
of adjoining streets justifies the modification. A pedestrian or
bicycle way may be required by easement or dedication by
the approving authority to allow connectivity to a nearby or
abutting street, park, school, or trail system to allow for
efficient pedestrian and bicycle connectivity between areas if
a block of greater than 1,000 feet if a modification is
approved and the requested easement or dedication has a
rational nexus to the proposed development and is roughly
proportional to the impacts created by the proposed land
division.

73.05.025 Easements

A. Utility Lines. Easements for sewers and water mains shall be
dedicated to the city wherever a utility is proposed outside of
a public right-of-way. Such easements must be in a form
acceptable to the city. Easements for electrical lines, or other
public utilities outside of the public right-of-way shall be
dedicated when requested by the utility provider. The
easements shall be at least 12 feet wide and centered on lot
or parcel lines, except for utility pole tieback easements,
which may be reduced to six (6) feet in width.

B. Utility Infrastructure. Utilities may not be placed within one
foot of a survey monument location noted on a subdivision or
partition plat.

C. Water Course. If a tract is traversed by a water course such
as a drainage way, channel, or stream, there shall be
provided a storm water easement or drainage right-of-way
conforming substantially to the lines of the water course, and
such further width as will be adequate for the purpose.
Streets or parkways parallel to the major water courses may
be required.

1 3.05.030 Lots and Parcels



A. Size. The size (including minimum area and width) of lots and
parcels shall be consistent with the applicable lot size
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance, with the following
exception:

Where property is zoned and planned for business or
industrial use, other widths and areas may be permitted at
the discretion of the Planning Commission. Depth and width
of properties reserved or laid out for commercial and
industrial purposes shall be adequate to provide for the off-
street service and parking facilities required by the type of
use and development contemplated.

B. Street Frontage. Each lot and parcel shall possess at least 25
feet of frontage along a Street other than an alley.

C. Through Lots and Parcels. Through lots and parcels are not
allowed. Modifications may be made by the approving
authority where they are essential to provide separation of
residential development from major traffic arteries or adjacent
nonresidential activities or to overcome specific
disadvantages of topography and orientation. The approving
authority may require a planting screen easement at least 10
feet wide and across which there shall be no right of access.
Such easement may be required along the line of building
sites abutting a traffic artery or other incompatible use.

D. Lot and Parcel Side Lines. The side lines of lots and parcels
shall run at right angles to the street upon which they face,
except that on curved streets they shall be radial to the curve.
Modifications to this requirement may be made by the
approving authority where it is impractical to do so due to
topography or other conditions or when the efficient layout of
the land division has the lines running as close to right angles
(or radial) as practical.

E. Special Setback Lines. All special building setback lines,
such as those proposed by the applicant or that are required
by a geological report, which are to be established in a land
division, shall be shown on the plat, or if temporary in nature,
shall be included in the deed restrictions.

F. Maximum lot and parcel size. Proposed lots and parcels shall
not contain square footage of more than 175% of the required
minimum lot size for the applicable zone. Modifications to this
requirement may be made by the approving authority to allow



greater square footage where topography or other conditions
restrict further development potential or where the layout of
the land division is designed and includes restrictions to
provide for extension and opening of streets at intervals
which will permit a subsequent division into lots or parcels of
appropriate size for the applicable zone designation.

G. Development Constraints. No lot or parcel shall be created
with more than 50 % of its land area containing wetlands or
lands where the city restricts development to protect
significant Statewide Land Use Planning Goal 5 or Goal 17
resources, except that areas designated as open space
within a land division may contain up to 100% of a protected
resource. Modifications to this requirement may be made by
the approval authority if the approval authority determines
that the proposed lot or parcel contains sufficient land area to
allow for construction on the lot or parcel without impacting
the resource or that a variance or other permit has been
obtained to allow for impacts on the identified resource.

H. Lots and Parcels within Geologic Hazard Areas. Each new
undeveloped lot or parcel shall include a minimum 1000
square foot building footprint within which a structure could
be constructed and which is located outside of active and
high hazard zones and active landslide areas (See Section 2-
4-7 of the Zoning Ordinance for an explanation of hazard
zones). New public infrastructure serving a lot or parcel shall
similarly be located outside of active and high hazard zones
and active landslide areas.

(73.05.030(H) added by Ordinance No. 2077 on July 18, 2017; effective August
77,2077)

13.05.035 Public Improvements

Public Improvement Procedures. In addition to other
requirements, public improvements installed by a developer that
is dividing land, whether requited or voluntarily provided, shall
comply with this chapter, and with any public improvement
standards or specifications adopted by the city. The following
procedure shall be followed:

A. Improvement work, including excavation in the excess of 100
cubic yards, shall not be commenced until plans have been
checked for adequacy and approved by the city. To the
extent necessary for evaluation of the proposal, the plans
shall be required before approval of the tentative plan of a
subdivision or partition.



B. Improvement work shall not commence until after the city is
notified, and, if work is discontinued for any reason, it shall
not be resumed until after the city is notified.

C. Public improvements shall be constructed under the
inspection and to the satisfaction of the city engineer. The
city may require change in typical sections and details in the
public interest if unusual conditions arise during construction
to warrant the change.

D. Underground utilities, sanitary sewers, and storm drains
installed in streets shall be constructed prior to the surfacing
of the streets. Stubs for service connection for underground
utilities and sanitary sewers shall be placed to allow future
connections without disturbing the street improvements.

E. A map showing public improvements as built shall be filed
with the city upon completion of the improvements.

F. Public improvements shall not be commenced until any
appeals of the subdivision approval are resolved.

13.05.040 Public Improvement Requirements

A. The following public improvements are required for all land
divisions, except where a subdivision plat is reconfiguring or
establishing rights-of-way for future public streets:

1. Streets. All streets, including alleys, within the land
division, streets adjacent but only partially within the land
divisions, and the extension of land division streets to the
intersecting paving line of existing streets with which the
land division streets intersect, shall be graded for the full
right-of-way width. The roadway shall be improved to a
width of 36 feet or other width as approved by the
approval authority by excavating to the street grade,
construction of concrete curbs and drainage structures,
placing a minimum of six inches of compacted gravel
base, placement of asphaltic pavement 36 feet in width or
other width as approved by the approval authority and
approximately two inches in depth, and doing such other
improvements as may be necessary to make an
appropriate and completed improvement. Street width
standards may be adjusted as part of the tentative plan
approval to protect natural features and to take into
account topographic constraints and geologic risks.



2. Surface Drainage and Storm Sewer System. Drainage
facilities shall be provided within the land division and to
connect the land division drainage to drainage ways or
storm sewers outside the land division. Design of
drainage within the land division shall take into account
the capacity and grade necessary to maintain unrestricted
flow from areas draining through the land division and to
allow extension of the system to serve such areas.

3. Sanitary Sewers. Sanitary sewers shall be installed to
serve each lot or parcel in accordance with standards
adopted by the city, and sewer mains shall be installed in
streets as necessary to connect each lot or parcel to the
city’s sewer system.

4. Water. Water mains shall be installed to allow service to
each lot or parcel and to allow for connection to the city
system, and service lines or stubs to each lot shall be
provided. Fire hydrants shall be installed as required by
the Uniform Fire Code. The city may require that mains be
extended to the boundary of the land division to provide
for future extension or looping.

5. Sidewalks. Required sidewalks shall be constructed in
conjunction with the street improvements except as
specified below:

a. Delayed Sidewalk Construction. If sidewalks are
designed contiguous with the curb, the subdivider may
delay the placement of concrete for the sidewalks by
depositing with the city a cash bond equal to 115
percent of the estimated cost of the sidewalk. In such
areas, sections of sidewalk shall be constructed by the
owner of each lot as building permits are issued. Upon
installation and acceptance by the city engineer, the
land owner shall be reimbursed for the construction of
the sidewalk from the bond. The amount of the
reimbursement shall be in proportion to the footage of
sidewalks installed compared with the cash bond
deposited and any interest earned on the deposit.

b. Commencing three (3) years after filing of the final
plat, or a date otherwise specified by the city, the city
engineer shall cause all remaining sections of
sidewalk to be constructed, using the remaining funds
from the aforementioned cash bond. Any surplus
funds shall be deposited in the city’s general fund to



cover administrative costs. Any shortfall will be paid
from the general fund.

c. Notwithstanding the above, a developer may
guarantee installation of required sidewalks in an
Improvement Agreement as provided in Section
73.05.090(C).

(73.05.040(A)f5) was amended by Ordinance No. 2045, adopted on
November 5, 2072; effective December 5, 2072.)

B. All public improvements shall be designed and built to
standards adopted by the city. Until such time as a formal set
of public works standards is adopted, public works shall be
built to standards in any existing published set of standards
designated by the city engineer for the type of improvement.
The city engineer may approve designs that differ from the
applicable standard if the city engineer determines that the
design is adequate.

C. Public improvements are subject to inspection and
acceptance by the city. The city may condition building or
occupancy within the land division on completion and
acceptance of required public improvements.

13.05.045 Adequacy of Public Facilities and Utilities (Electric
and Phone)

A. Tentative plans for land divisions shall be approved only if
public facilities and utilities (electric and phone) can be
provided to adequately service the land division as
demonstrated by a written letter from the public facility
provider or utility provider stating the requirements for the
provision of public facilities or utilities (electric and phone) to
the proposed land division:

B. For public facilities of sewer, water, storm water, and streets,
the letter must identify the:

1. Water main sizes and locations, and pumps needed, if
any, to serve the land division.

2. Sewer mains sizes and locations, and pumping facilities
needed, if any, to serve the land division.

3. Storm drainage facilities needed, if any, to handle any
increased flow or concentration of surface drainage from
the land division, or detention or retention facilities that



could be used to eliminate need for additional conveyance
capacity, without increasing erosion or flooding.

4. Street improvements outside of the proposed
development that may be needed to adequately handle
traffic generated from the proposed development.

13.05.050 Underground Utilities and Service Facilities

A. Undercjrounding. All utility lines within the boundary of the
proposed land divisions, including, but not limited to, those
required for electric, telephone, lighting, and cable television
services and related facilities shall be placed underground,
except surface-mounted transformers, surface-mounted
connection boxes and meter cabinets which may be placed
above ground, temporary utility service facilities during
construction, high capacity electric and communication
feeder lines, and utility transmission lines operating at 50,000
volts or above. The subdivider shall make all necessary
arrangements with the serving utility to provide the
underground service.

B. Non-City-Owned Utilities. As part of the application for
tentative land division approval, the applicant shall submit a
copy of the preliminary plat to all non-city-owned utilities that
will serve the proposed subdivision. The subdivider shall
secure from the non-city-owned utilities, including but not
limited to electrical, telephone, cable television, and natural
gas utilities, a written statement that will set forth their
extension policy to serve the proposed land division with
underground facilities. The written statements from each
utility shall be submitted to the city prior to the final approval
of the plat for recording.

13.05.055 Street Lights

Street lights are required in all land divisions where a street is
proposed. The city may adopt street light standards. In the
absence of adopted standards, Street lights shall be place in new
land divisions to assure adequate lighting of streets and
sidewalks within and adjacent to the land division.

13.05.060 Street Signs

Street name signs, traffic control signs and parking control signs
shall be furnished and installed by the city.



13.05.065 Monuments

Upon completion of Street improvements, monuments shall be
reestablished and protected in monument boxes at every street
intersection and all points of curvature and points of tangency of
street center lines.

13.05.070 Land Division Application

A. A person seeking approval of a land division shall submit the
following to the Community Development Department:

1. A completed city application form signed by the owner of
the property or an authorized agent. If the application form
is signed by an authorized agent, it must be accompanied
by a document signed by the property owner authorizing
the agent to act for the owner in the land division process.

2. An original tentative plan and 14 copies (3 copies if a
minor replat or a partition).

3. A narrative listing each applicable approval criterion or
standard and an explanation as to how the criterion or
standard is met.

4. A vicinity map showing existing subdivisions and
unsubdivided land ownerships adjacent to the proposed
subdivision and showing how proposed streets and
utilities will be extended to connect to existing streets and
utilities and may be connected to future streets and
utilities.

5. Proposed deed restrictions, if any, in outline form.

6. Approximate center line profiles with extensions for a
reasonable distance beyond the limits of the proposed
subdivision showing the finished grade of streets and the
nature and extent of Street construction.

7. A plan for domestic water supply lines and related water
service facilities.

8. Proposals for sewage disposal, storm water drainage, and
flood control, including profiles of proposed drainage
ways.



9. If lot areas are to be graded, a plan showing the nature of
cuts and fills and information on the character of the soil.

10. Where geologic hazards are known to exist on part or all
of the property in question based on adopted maps of the
City of Newport, a geologic hazard report is required and
shall be provided in accordance with the requirements of
Section 2-4-7 of the Zoning Ordinance. The report must
clearly state what measures will be taken to safeguard
against existing hazards.

(73.05.070(A)(70) was adapted by Ordinance No. 2077 on July 78, 2077;
effectiveAugust 77,2077)

11.Written letters from public facilities (water, sewer, storm
water, and streets) and utilities (electric and phone)
identifying requirements for providing service to the land
division.

12.An application fee in an amount set by City Council
resolution.

13.A Trip Assessment Letter, if required by Chapter 14.43.

14.A Traffic Impact Analysis, if required by Chapter 14.45.

15. Other materials that the applicant believes relevant or that
may be required by the city.

(Section 73.05.O7OfA)(13 - 75) were added or amended by Ordinance No. 2045,
adopted an November 5, 2072; effective December 5, 2012.)

B. The tentative plan of a land division shall be drawn on a
sheet 18 by 24 inches in size or a multiple thereof at a scale
of one inch equals 100 feet or, for areas over 100 acres, one
inch equals 200 feet.

C. The following general information shall be shown on the
tentative plan of the land division:

1. If a subdivision, the proposed name of the subdivision.
This name shall not duplicate or resemble the name of
another subdivision in the county and shall be approved
by the Planning Commission.

2. Date, northpoint, and scale of the drawing.



3. Appropriate identification of the drawing as a tentative
plan.

4. Location of the property being divided sufficient to define
its location and boundaries, and a legal description of the
entire property being divided.

5. Names and addresses of the owner, the applicant if
different from the owner, and the engineer and/or
surveyor.

6. The following existing conditions shall be shown on the
tentative plan:

a. The location, widths, and names of existing streets
and undeveloped rights of way within or adjacent to
the tract, any existing easements, and other important
features such as section lines, section corners, city
boundary lines, and monuments.

b. Contour lines related to some established bench mark
or other datum approved by the city and having
minimum intervals as follows:

i. For slopes of less than 5 percent: show the
direction of slope by means of arrows or other
suitable symbols, together with not less than four
(4) spot elevations per acre, evenly distributed.

ii. For slopes of 5 percent to 15 percent: five (5) feet.

iii. For slopes of 15 percent to 20 percent: 10 feet.

iv. For slopes of over 20 percent: 20 feet.

c. The location and direction of water courses and the
location of areas subject to flooding.

d. Natural features such as wetlands, tidelands,
marshes, or any natural resource identified as a
protected Statewide Land Use Planning Goal 5 or
Goal 17 resource on maps adopted by the city shall be
identified. Other features, such as rock outcroppings,
wooded areas, and isolated trees that serve as the
basis of any requested modifications to the land
division standards shall also be identified.



e. Existing uses of the property and location of existing
structures to remain on the property after platting.

f. The location within the land division and in the
adjoining streets and property of existing sewers,
water mains, culverts, drain pipes, and utility lines.

7. The following information shall be included on the
tentative plan of a subdivision.

a. The location, width, names, approximate grades, and
radii of curves of proposed streets and the relationship
of proposed streets to streets shown in the
Transportation System Plan. Streets in existing
adjacent developments and approved subdivisions
and partitions shall also be shown, as well as potential
street connections to adjoining undeveloped property.

b. The location, width, and purpose of proposed
easements.

c. The location and approximate dimensions of proposed
lots and the proposed lot and block numbers.

d. Proposed sites, if any, allocated for purposes other
than single-family dwellings.

D. If the land division proposal pertains to only part of the
property owned or controlled by the owner or applicant, the
city may require a sketch of a tentative layout for streets in
the undivided portion.

13.05.075 Preliminary Review and Notice of Hearing

A. On receipt of a complete land division application, the
community development director shall provide notice to other
agencies known to be affected or to have an interest.

B. Notice of a hearing before the Planning Commission shall be
given in accordance with Section 2-6-1 of the zoning
ordinance, except that the distance the city shall use for
identifying properties entitled to notice shall be 150 feet
rather than 300 feet.

13.05.080 Hearing and Approval for Land Divisions Other
Than a Minor Replat or Partition.



A. The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on a
land division application other than a minor replat or partition
and shall be the initial decision maker, subject to appeal to
the City Council. The Planning Commission may approve,
approve with conditions or deny the application, based on the
standards and criteria of this chapter. The Planning
Commission may tentatively approve the apphcation, subject
to submission of additional information. Any tentative
approval must be followed by a final decision. The decision
shall be in writing and supported by findings.

B. The city shall take final action within 120 days from the time
the application is complete. The time period may be extended
at the request or with the consent of the applicant.

C. The action of the Planning Commission shall be by final
order. A copy of the final order shall be sent to the applicant.

D. Notice of the decision shall be provided to all persons entitled
to notice, including all persons who have asked to be notified
of the decision.

13.05.025 Approval Criteria and Conditions for Land Divisions
Other than Minor Replats or Partitions.

A. The proposed land division will comply with the requirements
of this chapter or can be made to comply by the attachment
of reasonable conditions of approval. For the purposes of this
section, a land division complies with this chapter if it meets
the standard provided herein or if a modification or variance
is approved by the approving agency to the standard.

B. Any required submitted geological hazard report must
conclude that the property can be developed in the manner
proposed by the land division. The land division must comply
with any recommendations contained in the report. Approval
of the land division by the Planning Commission pursuant to
a submitted geological hazard report includes approval of the
geological report recommendations. Based on the geological
hazard report, the Planning Commission shall establish when
compliance with the geological report recommendations must
be demonstrated. The geological hazard report shall be in the
form of a written certification prepared by an engineering
geologist or other equivalent certified professional,
establishing that the report requirements have been satisfied,
and should be noted as a condition of approval.



13.05.090 Final Plat Requirements for Land Divisions Other
than Minor Replats or Partitions

A. Submission of Final Plat. Within two years after tentative plan
approval, such other time established at the time of tentative
plan approval, or extensions granted under this chapter, the
owner and/or applicant (collectively referred to as the
“developer”) shall cause the land division to be surveyed and
a final plat prepared. If the developer elects to develop the
land division in phases, final plats for each phase shall be
completed within the time required (e.g. Phase I completed
within two years, Phase II completed within the next two
years, etc.). The final plat shall be in conformance with the
approved tentative plan, this chapter, ORS Chapter 92, and
standards of the Lincoln County Surveyor.

B. Provision of Improvements. It shall be the responsibility of the
developer to install all required improvements and to repair
any existing improvements damaged in the development of
the property. The installation of improvements and repair of
damage shall be completed prior to final plat approval.
Except as provided in Subsection C., or where payment in
lieu of constructing a required improvement is allowed by the
city and has been paid by the developer per Chapter 14.45,
the final plat will not be approved until improvements are
installed to the specifications of the city and “as constructed”
drawings are given to the city and approved by the city
engineer. The developer shall warrant the materials and
workmanship of all requited public improvements for a period
of one year from the date the city accepts the public
improvements.

(Section 73.05.090(B) was amended by Ordinance No. 2045, adopted on November
5,2072; effective December 5, 2072.)

C. Improvement Agreements. If all the required improvements
have not been satisfactorily completed before the final plat is
submitted for approval, the city may, at its discretion, allow
final approval of the plat if the developer enters into a written
agreement with the city to provide the required improvements
secured by a bond or letter of credit. The agreement must
provide for completion within one year of the approval of the
final plat. The agreement shall be acceptable to the city
attorney and include provisions that:

1. Authorize the city to complete the required improvements
and recover their full cost and expense from the
developer if the developer fails to complete the



improvements as required.

2. Authorize the inspection of all improvements by the city
engineer and provide for reimbursement to the city of all
costs of inspection.

3. Indemnify of the city, its officials, employees and agents,
from and against all claims of any nature arising or
resulting from the failure of the developer to comply with
any requirement of such agreement.

4. Ensure compliance with conditions required by the city in
approving the final plat prior to completion of all required
improvements.

D. Financial Assurances. A developer that enters into an
improvement agreement shall provide financial assurances in
the form of one or both of the following:

1. A surety bond executed by a surety company authorized
to transact business in the State of Oregon and in a form
satisfactory to the city attorney, or

2. An irrevocable letter of credit in a form satisfactory to the
city attorney.

E. Amount of Security. The financial assurances shall be in an
amount equal to 150% of the amount determined by the city
engineer as sufficient to cover the cost of the improvements,
engineering, inspection, and incidental expenses. The
financial assurances may provide for reduction of the amount
in increments as improvements are completed and approved
by the city engineer. However, the number of reductions or
disbursements and the amount of retainage required shall be
at the discretion of the city engineer.

F. Post Comrletion Financial Assurances. On acceptance of all
improvements by the city, the amount of the security shall be
reduced to 20% of the original sum and shall remain in effect
until the expiration of the one year warranty period. All
deficiencies in construction and maintenance discovered and
brought to the attention of the developer and surety within
one year of acceptance must be corrected to the satisfaction
of the city engineer. The developer may substitute a new
warranty bond rather than amending the original performance
bond or letter of credit.



G. Acceptance of Improvements by City, Guarantee. The city
will accept public improvements only if they have received
final inspection approval by the city engineer and “as
constructed” engineering plans have been received and
accepted by the city engineer. The developer shall warrant all
public improvements and repairs for a period of one year
after acceptance by the city.

H. Time Limit Between Tentative Plan and Final Plat
(Extensions). Requests for extension of the one year time
limit for submission of final plat shall be in writing. On receipt
of the written request, the community development director
may grant an extension of up to one year. The Planning
Commission may grant an additional one year extension after
public hearing. Notice shall be the same as the original
tentative plan. The criteria for an extension are:

1. An unforeseen change in the economic condition has
affected the real estate market for the project; or

2. The weather has prevented the physical work; or

3. Other unanticipated hardship, such as change or turnover
in engineering firms, contractors, or significant delays in
obtaining required state or federal permits requires
additional time to complete the project.

An extension may only be granted if the comprehensive plan,
zoning ordinance, and subdivision ordinance have not
changed in a way that would substantially affect the original
tentative plan.

I. Phased Developments. For a phased development, final
plats may be submitted consistent with any phasing plan
approved at the time of tentative plan approval. Extensions
may be granted by the Planning Commission under the
standards of Subsection E.

J. Procedure and Standard for Approval of a Final Plat. On
receipt of the final plat application, the community
development director shall have up to 30 days to review and
determine if the application is complete. If the application is
not complete, it shall be returned to the applicant with a
written explanation of why the application is being returned. If
complete, the application shall be accepted.

The community development director shall forward the final



plat to the city engineer for comment. The city engineer shall
have 20 days to comment on the final plat. Comments shall
be in writing. After the 20-day comment period, the
community development director shall decide whether the
final plat complies with the following criteria:

1. The final plat is in substantial compliance with the
tentative plan.

2. The required improvements have been completed.

3. The final plat complies with all conditions attached to the
tentative plan.

4. Planned public facilities that were relied on to comply with
Section 13.05.045 at the time of tentative plan approval
have been completed and are available for use.

If the final plat is approved, the plat shall be forwarded to the
Planning Commission chair for signature. If the final plat is
denied, the applicant shall be notified in writing why the final
plat was denied and what items need to be corrected before
the final plat can be approved.

K. Recordinci of Final Plat. After final approval, the final plat
shall be forwarded to Lincoln County for review and recording
as required by law. Within 90 days of approval, the developer
shall submit to the city a mylar copy and two paper copies of
the recorded final plat.

13.05.095 Minor Replats and Partitions

A. Procedure for Review. After an application for minor replat or
partition is deemed complete, the community development
director shall send notice to persons within 100 feet of the
subject property and, if there are existing public easements,
affected utilities, that the tentative plan has been filed.
Notified parties shall be given 14 days to provide written
comments. After the 14 day period, the community
development director shall decide whether the application
complies with the criteria and provide a written decision. The
criteria for approval are:

1. The tentative plan complies with the definition of a replat
or partition, as appropriate.

2. All lots or parcels within the tentative plan meet the



requirements of Section 13.05.030. Alternatively, if the
original lots or parcels were nonconforming, the resultant
lots or parcels may be allowed without a variance if they
are less nonconforming.

3. Approval of the tentative plan does not interfere with the
provision of key public facilities.

4. The applicant has agreed to sign a consent to participate
in sewer, water, ot Street local improvement districts that
the subject lots or parcels would be part of once those
districts are formed. The consent shall be a separate
document recorded upon the lots or parcels subject to the
partition. The document shall be recorded prior to final
plat approval.

5. Public facilities serving the minor replat or partition are
adequate under Section 13.05.045. Proposed streets
within the minor replat or partition comply with the
standards under Section 13.05.015, including any allowed
modification, or a variance has been obtained.

6. All required public improvements will be provided.

7. Any required submitted geological hazard report
concludes that the property can be developed in the
manner proposed, in accordance with any
recommendations contained in the report.

B. Compliance with Criteria. If the tentative plan complies with
the criteria, the plan shall be approved. Conditions of
approval, including requirements to provide public
improvements necessary to allow development, may be
imposed. If the tentative plan does not comply with the
criteria or cannot be made to comply through reasonable
conditions of approval, the plan shall be denied and the
applicant shall be notified in writing why the tentative plan
was denied and what items need to be corrected before the
tentative plan can be approved.

C. Geological Hazards Reports. Approval of the minor replat or
partition pursuant to a submitted geological hazard report
includes approval of the geological report recommendations.
Based on the report, the community development director
shall establish when compliance with the geological report
recommendations must be demonstrated. This shall be in the
form of a written certification prepared by an engineering



geologist or other equivalent certified professional,
establishing that the report requirements have been satisfied,
and should be noted as a condition of approval.

D. Appeal. Persons who make written comment during the
comment period shall be notified of the final decision. Any
person with standing may file an appeal of the planning
director’s approval or denial of a tentative plan. Notice and
the hearing procedure shall be the same as for a subdivision
tentative plat approval.

E. Final Plat Approval. Within two years of the tentative plan
approval, the applicant shall submit to the city a final plat for
the replat or partition that is consistent with the tentative plan
and state law. A signature block for the Community
Development Director, the Lincoln County Surveyor, the
Lincoln County Tax Collector, and the Lincoln County Tax
Assessor shall be on the final plat. The community
development director shall approve the final plat if it is
consistent with the tentative plan and all conditions have
been satisfied, including the provision and acceptance of any
requited public improvements. The city shall forward
approved plats to Lincoln County for review and recordation.
The applicant shall submit one paper copy of the recorded
final plat within 90 days to the community development
department.

F. Procedure for Approval of Replat Other than a Minor Replat.
The procedure and criteria for tentative and final approval of
replats other than minor replats shall be the same as for
subdivisions or partitions, depending on whether the replat is
of a subdivision or partition.

13.05.100 Cemeteries

A. Minimum Requirements for the Platting and Subdivision of
Land for Cemetery Purposes. The following are the minimum
requirements for lot sizes, walkways, streets, and Street
improvement widths applicable to cemeteries:

1. Lot Sizes:

a. Width - not less than four feet.

b. Length - not less than 10 feet.

2. Walkways:



a. Width - not less than six (6) feet.

b. Location - each individual grave to be served.

3. Street Right-of-Way Widths:

a. Within the plat - not less than 32 feet.

b. Entrance roads - to conform to present city subdivision
regulations.

4. Street Improvement Widths:

a. Within the plat - not less than 24 feet.

b. Entrance roads - to conform to present city subdivision
regulations.

5. Deadend Roads (Within the Plat):

a. Right-of-way - not less than 42 feet.

b. Improvement width - not less than 36 feet.

c. Cul-de-sac - not less than a 45 foot radius.

B. Buffer Strips. Buffer strips shall be established that are at
least 100 feet in width when a cemetery development is
adjacent to a residentially zoned property; 75 feet when a
cemetery development is adjacent to tourist-commercial
zoned property; and 50 feet in width when a cemetery
development is adjacent to all other commercially zoned
property. No lots shall be allowed within the buffer strips.

C. Buffer Strip Plantinci and Maintenance. All required buffer
strips shall be planted at the time the adjacent land planted
for cemetery lots is being offered for sale. The buffer strip
shall have evergreen trees planted to such a density that they
are an effective screen to adjoining property. The evergreen
trees shall have an initial minimum planting height of four (4)
feet and shall be of such species that they will reach a height
of at least 20 feet at maturity. All remaining ground areas in
the buffer strip shall be maintained as lawn area, shrubs, or
flower beds, as are maintained by the management of the
cemetery in all other areas of the cemetery plat that are
presently being used.



D. Location of Cemeteries. No cemeteries shall be allowed to be
placed within one mile of the high-water line of the Pacific
Ocean and within one-half mile of the high-water line of the
Yaquina Bay.

13.05.705 Miscellaneous

A. Exceptions for Planned Developments. The standards and
requirements of this chapter may be modified without a
variance for planned developments.

B. Variances. Variances to this chapter not otherwise allowed by
modification within this chapter are subject to the standards
and procedures for variances in the zoning ordinance. Notice
of the variance request may be included in the legal notice for
the hearing on the tentative plan for a subdivision or may be
provided separately.

C. Violations. Violations of this chapter are civil infractions with a
maximum civil penalty of $500. A separate violation exists for
each day the violation continues. Violations of separate
provisions of this chapter are separate civil infractions. If a
developer or owner repeatedly violates this chapter, the city
may elect to place and enforce a lien on any land division in
violation of this chapter.

(Chapter 73.05 adopted by Ordinance No. 7990, on October 19, 2009, effective
November 18, 2009.)





EXHIBIT 8

CHAPTER 14.44 TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS

14.44.010 Purpose. The purpose of this Chapter is to
provide planning and design standards for the
implementation of public and private transportation facilities
and city utilities and to indicate when and where they are
required. Streets are the most common public spaces,
touching virtually every parcel of land. Therefore, one of the
primary purposes of this Chapter is to provide standards for
attractive and safe streets that can accommodate vehicle
traffic from planned growth and provide a range of
transportation options, including options for driving, walking,
bus, and bicycling. This Chapter implements the city’s
Transportation System Plan.

14.44.020 When Standards Apply. The standards of this
section apply to new development or redevelopment for
which a building permit is requited that places demands on
public or private transportation facilities or city utilities.
Unless otherwise provided, all construction, reconstruction,
or repair of transportation facilities, utilities, and other public
improvements within the city shall comply with the standards
of this Chapter. (
14.44.030 Engineering Design Criteria, Standard
Specifications and Details. The design criteria, standard
construction specifications and details maintained by the City
Engineer, or any other road authority within Newport, shall
supplement the general design standards of this Chapter.
The city’s specifications, standards, and details are hereby
incorporated into this code by reference.

14.44.040 Conditions of Development Approval. No
development may occur unless required public facilities are in
place or guaranteed, in conformance with the provisions of
this Code. Improvements required as a condition of
development approval, when not voluntarily accepted by the
applicant, shall be roughly proportional to the impact of the
development on public facilities. Findings in the development
approval shall indicate how the required improvements are
directly related and roughly proportional to the impact.

14.44.050 Transportation Standards.

A. Development Standards. The following standards shall
be met for all new uses and developments:



1. All new lots created, consolidated, or modified through
a land division, partition, lot line adjustment, lot
consolidation, or street vacation must have frontage
or approved access to a public street.

2. Streets within or adjacent to a development subject to
Chapter 13.05, Subdivision and Partition, shall be
improved in accordance with the Transportation
System Plan, the provisions of this Chapter, and the
street standards in Section 13.05.015.

3. Development of new streets, and additional Street
width or improvements planned as a portion of an
existing street, shall be improved in accordance
Chapter 13.05, and public streets shall be dedicated
to the applicable road authority;

4. Substandard streets adjacent to existing lots and
parcels shall be brought into conformance with the
standards of Chapter 13.05.

B. Guarantee. The city may accept a future improvement
guarantee in the form of a surety bond, letter of credit or
non-remonstrance agreement, in lieu of street
improvements, if it determines that one or more of the
following conditions exist:

1. A partial improvement may create a potential safety
hazard to motorists or pedestrians;

2. Due to the developed condition of adjacent properties
it is unlikely that street improvements would be
extended in the foreseeable future and the
improvement associated with the project under review
does not, by itself, provide increased street safety or
capacity, or improved pedestrian circulation;

3. The improvement would be in conflict with an adopted
capital improvement plan; or

4. The improvement is associated with an approved land
partition or minor replat and the proposed land
partition does not create any new streets.



C. Creation of Rights-of-Way for Streets and Related Purposes.
Streets may be created through the approval and recording of
a final subdivision or partition plat pursuant to Chapter 13.05;
by acceptance of a deed, provided that the Street IS deemed
in the public interest by the City Council for the purpose of
implementing the Transportation System Plan and the
deeded right-of-way conforms to the standards of this Code;
or other means as provided by state law.

D. Creation of Access Easements. The city may approve an
access easement when the easement is necessary to
provide viable access to a developable lot or parcel and there
is not sufficient room for public right-of-way due to
topography, lot configuration, or placement of existing
buildings. Access easements shall be created and
maintained in accordance with the Uniform Fire Code.

E. Street Location, Width, and Grade. The location, width and
grade of all streets shall conform to the Transportation
System Plan, subdivision plat, or street plan, as applicable
and are to be constructed in a manner consistent with
adopted City of Newport Engineering Design Criteria,
Standard Specifications and Details. Street location, width, (
and grade shall be determined in relation to existing and
planned streets, topographic conditions, public convenience
and safety, and in appropriate relation to the proposed use of
the land to be served by such streets, pursuant to the
requirements in Chapter 13.05.

(Chapter 14A4 as adopted by Ordinance No. 2045 on November 5, 2072;
efictlve December 30, 3072. This ordinance renumbered Municioal Code
Chapters 74.43, ‘Procedural Requirements,’ through 14.57, ‘Fees, - and enacted
new Chapters 14.43, ‘South Beach Oveflay Zone,’ 14.44, ‘Transportation
Standards, ‘and 14.45, Traffic lmpactAna/ysis.


	Agenda_11-9-15_PC_Regular_Meeting
	Draft_PC_Meeting_Minutes_10-12-15
	Draft_PC_Work_Session_Minutes_10-26-15
	File_3-PAR-15-A_Staff_Memo_and_Exhibits
	3-PAR-15-A_Memo
	Exhibit_1-3
	Exhibit_3-Map
	Exhibit_3-Aerial
	Exhibit_4
	Exhibit_5
	Exhibit_6
	Exhibit_7
	Exhibit_8


